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1] OVERVIEW

Group snapshot

Revenue

Revenue has increased by
over 827% in the last 3 years
from £390m in 2020 to
£712m in 2022

Energy generation

Our renewable energy
assets produce enough
enargy 1o power over
a million UK homes

Number of employees

We employ over 1,690
people

Carbon offsets

Qur renewakble energy sites’
carpon saving is over 822,600
carbon tonnes this year

Number of loans

Over the year we
provided financing to, on
average 182 borrowers
in the UK

Number of sites

We own 220 renewable
energy sites spread
predominantly across
the UK




A

Cur Group was in a sciia position coming out of
the lockdown resoonse to Covd-19, ana our
business ha ronustly
throughout the year This year has teen some
unforecasted growtn in vaiue of certan divisions

s contirued 1o parfarmr

primarily dr ven by the ‘rncrease ir energy pricss

Fern Trading Lim ted {"the Compar‘:y” Gr togetrier
with s supsidiaries the Group”) argets corsistent

grown for shareholders gver tme \om:* I, W &

focus on steady anc predictable growih, ths s

parucularly important during maore cnalienging

2conomic concitiond. We have a diversited and

matire business beftting a Group with more than

‘ad nq mstory and amaiion, The Group
e than 300 corrpanigs thaf Fave

3 ranqe of seCtors over mary years

)

ady long-term growth for our

s We operate in essential seciors that
we expect to perform stezaily througr market

acure pase we hNave bear able to add

| expansion and diversifcation in 2
a way through seexing cul opporiuntes

new adjacent sectors. Thaze sactors provide us

MeAsUre

with a plafrorm tor cortinue W expana 1n one with
v Today, our Group coragrses
*/ iencing, h
fhore ard nouse budrg divisions. We nave grow o

our exist, ctrate

aaltheare infrastructie

to be a sgriacant presence with n our mos?

seciors, procucinrg 4.2% cf the UK's
sotar energy and 1.7% of tine U<s onshare wind
erergy cutpwt, and Cuilding a £261m shert ard
medium term lerd ng busiress that facitates tne
construchon and imoroverrenT of homes
Trodaghout rre LR

ek

The Cormoany's share pr ce dewvered “0% growth
over tre gatt 12 rorths, wes anesd of our target
of 4% growth cer annurm. Tne extracramary growth
1< attrbutable o
benefitted from

as
energy prce forecasts an~d erergy forward rates

viz.on, wrieh has

it norease 0 long-enry

over tne penog, naddition to inf.ation. The

increase in the value of our erergy division was
supooried by scid operatwnal perforrance across

all sectors and some organic growth ir newer

We remair a supoortive empieyarn, with o than
Le90 ful-time staft across the Dusinesses that we

own ard operaie and ir d're:ten'epir:ymerwt

provided for hundreds more people tnrough

cortracts that we nave ptace

A reflection on our year
Qur pusiness rased E404m from invesiars thes year,

%lvef&i corsistent revenues while growmo capita.
en.oyrment, resuong in £712m in ravenuy
E@Zim; ard ne.

enerated acress

8}
b=

assels of £2,215m

The financial staterments for tre year show an
operatrg profit before tax of £42m agarst our
expected outcoTe of a srnall accounti~g profrn This
robiust pecformsnrg is a direct result of energy
producea by the graup Bairg scld lor higher orices
dur ng the year. Alrost £0% of cur cusiress

COMONZEs renewal & eNargy gereraing assels such

as solar erergy stes and wing farr s, whch srovide
lorg-term revenue strearms These are intentonally

b

divers:ned 3cross a range of wohno 0965 1o minigate

L]

wor perforrance na specilc secior and

contribure towards sweady, pred.ctaple share price

arow e, however, ther values can st be 'mpacted
by cranges in gricing anc demand. We have seen

consecdtve ard mater al ‘noreas NG term

erargy pnce ‘orecatts and energy forward rates

'U'W

alohally over the last 15 montrs

ecoromy recovess from the Co

d-15 panderric,
and seeks g ter~ative sources of energy a5 2 resulr of

the confic: 't U<raim Or'g vIth infiabon, these
faztors rave rmaeraly nc

Group's energy 3ssats

L
Jurisd-chions, as we L 23 Jiing sur experise to enter

tre LK comrrercal a3 industrial roc oo solar
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Chief Executive's review

Markeis &

=

nd starting construction or a large wind
ralia. At the start of the year we added
Ve ;uww divis:on

—n

armn Aust
rine addibona: sites 1 our rese
which Brings us up © 26 sites in wotal
ten sites for most of 27021) Theze sites nave
performed anead of expeciations. generatirg
EBITDA of £26m (2021, £4m) dur'ng the year,

Gur successfal and well-estabhished biomas

[

r‘om“. well

OJ

a sion contnues 1o pe nd nas
celvered stable returns since acguisiton in 2015,
This year, | have ceen cartucularly pleased (C see
strong performance at our naveest bicmass site
Snetterton, East Anglia, which was acguired in Apni
021, proving to be a valuab.e addt or to tne
business During the year we purchased a Waste-
to-Energy faciity currently under construction :n
Ayrshre. Tre “acilizy has
three years and will be capable of processing over
185,600 tornes per annum of non-recyclacle

Aousehold, commiercial and industral waste whicr

s beer in de slopment ‘¢

would otherwize be sent ' landhll or exported

This wll generate 17 M\We of low carbon electricity,

ernough to power 30,000 homes [t wil be the first
large-scale, subsidy free waste-to- @Fergy ur’uj%’:t in
western Scotlard and projectad compies date

N eary 2024

Owver recent years, many of our energy assets have
been under construcuon which nas contriguted 1o
our previgusly reported accounting losses. This s
typical of such businesses during growth phase

vern witern casn generative, because finance costs
and accownting charges, such as degreciation,
exceeded revenues. This divisior has now reached
our target size and sector split.

Accordingly this year | am pleased to report an
accoun
budgeted small accouning profit. Trus slightly

ting profit betore tax of 48m against our

larger than expecic
the portfolic and higher energy prices; resultng in
roreased revenue frorm our enargy division as well
as an increase ir Inflabon (az excla ned below).

[compared 1o

orofit s due to the maturity of

Our property lending business makes uo around
27% of the Group and comprnises shert and rredium
term secured loans to experenced property
nrofessiorals Tnis established part of our business
corunued o perform well, folowing a short pericd
of slow down during Covid-15 whern we
rienticnally chose to wrte fewer loans Our average

ican book was 182 loans this year 10 L < borrowers,
Quir terwding division nigs abways operated a
conzervaitve loan 1o value levels { 7C/

urity if
there is a reduction in property values This strategy

order that it mairtains access 1o valuabEe sec

nas served the Group well since inception 12 years

ago. end it has operated trrough periods of change
severdl tinmres, Tne Group s
cautious approach when assessing new lenaing

tak Ng a naturauy

opporiunties in light of the changing economis
outicok To date, the Group has lert £2 2o of
property loans since incephion n 2010, suffering
only E6min capital losses. This strong track record
15 the result of cur careful aoproach in tris sector,
cormprising disciplined due dikgence, conservative
can-o-value raucs and an ability ard willngness o
reduce activity 10 His sector during tmes of
eConCMm © ungcerainty. We witi continueg to adopt
this approach throughout the coving year

The healthcare divis.on makes Lp around 4% of the
Group and 1s broadly performing well Cur
retirermert villages business, Rangeford Holdings
Limited {"Rargeford’) contnued to seli apartments
af three sites, commerced construction of 3 fourth
village in Chertsey, and acquired a ffth tocation
near Cambrnidge during the year. Sales at the

ed 10 commence In 2024,

Cherisey site are expec

wrie constraction at the Cambridge site is
expected 1© start in 2023 with the first sales

cornmencing in 2026

Our fibre division was established in 2012 ard
remains an arez of growtn for the Group, now
compnsing of six operating businesses Our

residentizl businesses, Jurassic F bre, Swish Ficre,

e}
35
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Fibre arc bL:lding uiorafast

cagband networks in

Grganet and ALgoinis
“bre to the premises’ o
UK whicn

e have beer ovarloores by
larger operalors, Giganet orovides cornectvty

homes and businesses across e UK using SiyFibre
and COpenreack nfrastructure ard Vinf g a software
evcloprmer: comasany whiza has deve‘v.:ped

d
pr@prl‘etafy software o allow Ineret Service

i o sel conneciv ty over who'esate enaoled
retworss, including Allpoints Fibre, Vorboss s the
focis

UK's only aedicaed enterprise fibre network ©
Ky

S
on prov ding connechivity to businesses i London
N the year, cur residertal fore ous nesses

Corrrusa o nveil capital in 2xpanding e«

Cthe SOl and

Southwest of Ergland, ard are now o

ome Court
carding
customers to thair networ<s, generaing recung
revenues for the Group. Our stare-of-the-art
neotworks are alb e (o meeat customear damand for
higher breachand speeds requiren as a result of
Mmore wWiork: ngf"ffﬁ hoame ard noreased usage o
CInLondorn, Vorboss has

a bas instailed over

video-Gn-aerand servic

aloo continues to band an
S00xm of “ibre wth a commitrrent to offer JCGbps
Longen

fore to Lo o 15,0 s in Centra,

by 2027

Jbusne

Whils: cur fpre div A rernaing in a g
for the naxt 3-5
aN accounting oroft

years we do not exoec

Towards the end of the year, we adoed 2 new
property deve.sper 1o the Groun, with the acquisition
for EESrm Euviais an

of Elivia Hornes ("Elvia"}
estatlishea ho
famLy hormes in Lofdcn

utaer developing mid-market

w«

commuter wowrs arad

il A e
Hanas Why g
‘./l\h,:“__- VVnpe s

rerresents a very srnal part of tre

Group, we par c grow TN a measursd way over

e next bve years watt an Jllimats arger o deé:ver
600 homes per year, includ ng 200 1 gh gua
afforaable rorres Egvia nas a sirong exs wg

leadersmip tea whio are kay 70 ronning the ousiness

Inflation and Interest rates
The figher rate of inf.auor exgerienced this year

Fas hean res\co%i&e for soae of tha

Sutperficrmance agamst expeciatons in the
Company’s share price HM Treasury forecast that
hign ifaticor s vkely o pe present Lntil 2025 as a

resut we expect to recaive maore reverLe for the

erergy generated within oJr energy division, ana 3

mghzr value from tre government subsidies that

i

ome of Odr 8nergy si T oM, INCreasing

tre valus of trose sites However, a short per:od of
bgh infiauon such as forecast nas very little effect
orstne raie at which the Grous is expected to grow.
T 1s pecause re renewable energy s.tes we owr

genye e vaiue from ¢

dizcourred projected future

: Cver the Ume they are excecied to

casritlo
operate ‘or wyoically 20 years or rore. F the
cutlook for o-g-term irfiaton were 1o norease, the
impact or Sur skare price should be posiive
reverue sach of our

pecadse 1 would ncrease the

sites would exoect (o make, in contrast tu a

w

e atively fixed cost base

Tre expecied nse - interest rates < forecast o

reture to normai after a signficant penog o v

S yer
low rates The immiediate imipact o tris or our

bus ness @ expected to be broadiy neutral sinice
our Group i inentonally structured s as not 10
exper enc
rates cnange We continue o take a Calious

approach with r

sigr ficant vade eros on when mniarest
rour lending business where toe
nsing interest raws are felt more closely, and we
have tne at-lity o reduce t-e nurrber of (Gars
we write, 0 alter the risk crofile of cur loans
taroagh reduc’ re Can o vaue rat-os
aCtivity in Certan pants o

£o. aupropnaie

Cr pausng
frhe market snould tnat
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Chief Executive's review

Current trading and outlook

Since the year end, the Group has continued 1o
periorm steadily from an operational perspaciive
and in lre with our expecation
seen share price growt™ ahead Of warget due to the
continued increase N long term energy proe
forecasts. Our growth targets for the Group over
the medium and long erm remain unchanged, and
we continue to focus on mantaining a dversified
capak
oredictable growth for sn

pusiness that s of delivering more

grehoders

ders.

The recerty announced Eiectricity Gererator Levy
FCSL withir the 2023 Finarce Bill, wiil have an
mpact on the returns generated from our energy
porticio over the next 5 years, Tnis 1s further

diecussed n the group frnance review on gage 27

Ciur property lending busiress cont nues o

perform strongly, with increasec deploymeant in thic
sector snice the year end. We focus on snort erm
0ans wour average current loan term s 17 months;
wich enables us to adapl to charges i suilook
swiftly, we feel tris s particularly :mpertant in the

cdrrent econormc chmate

Performance in cur neashcare divizior continues

o De stable,

about the opportunties to irmprove performarce in

and we contirue to rerrain positive

this secior

Sirice year end, we have continued o buld out cur

fipre networks, with construcion Tracking o line
with ou- expactalions, We continue to review
opperiunities for both organ ¢ and ircrganic
growth sucpo-ling our exsting maragerrent tearms

I deliverng this strategy

e Decermber 2022 we have acquived the rights

£25m of ng-t o use mob le tcenses fro
LK, thus mak.ng the first sies towards becommg ar

nree

miobile virtual network cperator

Our mix oF business areas nas deveioped cver tme
and may evolve ‘urtner
by tne
mesting the objectives of our sharenoders
should not be read as ary mdication o

over the years ahead, driven
GURrarchiNg IMporiance we place on

This

fa wholesaie
change in the sectars in whicn we operate, but as a
reflection of the role played by the strategic

mandate in protecting shareho.ders nlerests

“Our mix of business areas has
developed over time, driven by
the overarching importance
we place on meeting the

objectives of our shareholders.”
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Our business at a glance

What we do

Fern Trading Limited Cfern’) is the parent company ¢ 3. Lending division
of nearly 320 subsidiaries fogether the "Groug’) Our 1 We lend on a short ard mediam term, securec

CroWp CRerates across Nve Key areas’ energy. basis w0 a large number of property professionals

heaircare, iendirg, hore and ~ouse bulding, Over P oWe alzo provide Tnancing to enabie other Dusiness

the past twewe yaars we have bull & carefully to build assets anc other residenual and

diversitea gro.p of operaung businesses tha are cornmercia: propertie

well sositioned tc deliver iong-term value and :

4. Fibre division
predictable growih for our sharehoiderz,

and networks
MNe Lild e
nesworks and connect them (o hemes and

Ve own and ogerate fibre broa
1. Energy division BCrOSs vanous areas of the UL
We generate power from sustainanle sources and

busnesses W provide Sur cusiomers with Litrafast

sell tne energy produced ener directy 16 inaustna;

consuamers or 1o large netwaorks, Many of our Fore broadband

renawab e energy sies qualfy for «

government

5. Home building division

Ircentives, woIch represent an adcitioral soorce o N
Durng (e year, we sues

essfiily entered the house
irocome. We have also dlihsed our experise n - S

P ) buildng sector, acguinng Eavia Homes which has a
rerw:wehi@ emegy to construct facilities for saie o

‘ strong track record of deve.oning homeas in a
Group had o ‘ ‘
sustairable manner The company 1e a fuli-serv ce

Ioproperty develoner, meanirg it provides services
2. Healthcare division o the design, to the engneering ard thea hnal
We provice niomes and ieisure faciltes o cur Consiruchor o ensure the delivery of quality
ageing pooulation, ana private raspitals wheh Ioworkmanshp.
provide hhgh-auabty healincare services aoross
operatioral sites in the 1

Sotar, wind,

biormass. Property lending, Retlremgnt Ultrafast fibre Residential house
landsil gas development vitlages, private broadband across buildin
dgas. financing hospitats the UK E

reserve power

Cneralisra, Comsimnusr
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Our business at a glance

Ihe strength of our Group's strategy s ir both its
operatoral diversity and the return profile of these
busnesses Cur lending business provides fexibiity
and strong returre over the short term, while cur
erergy. nezlthcare, ficre and home buliding
devisiors offer vsibilty and stabitity of returns over
the lorge- term.

The scae of our business 1s a Key strength, enabiing
U3 1o acqure iarge-scale €

w1

tablisned operations as
well as the opportunity 1o enter new sectors with
minimal ns< o the whole Group by selecting

Sector split’

Wing 22% — |

Solar 20% -

Reserve power 6%

Fern's sector
allocation

sirong management tegams This enatiles us to
continue 1o diversify cur business wiinout
compremisng on tre guality of our opearations
Over the past three years, we have suczessfully
ertered the fhre broactband sector and we now
OwWnN Six companies with exciting plars o deliver

uitrafast broadiand across the UK.

Heatthcare 1%

- Property 27%

Reserve power 2%
- Solar 1%

~-Fibre 5%
- Healthcare 4%

. - Landfill gas and biornass 9%

Omer 3% 7

B B Owning and operating assets 69%
BE Lending 31%

"Sectar solitis giver by value, as represented o the camp

any ta.ance sheet of Fern Trading Lirmeted

businesses with comprchensive busiress plans and
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Our business at a glance

Whers we oparaie

We zre proud that e pusinesses
withm cur Group rmake a positive
ontribution 1o society, from
generaling Clean erergy to e /}\ j
creation of romes and the provizion ‘

of GLality healthcare infrastructure. %‘

|
|
!
|
% i
i
I

b

o }l\

&8

Soiar stes

“anafil gas facil 557 i

T I :
L N w#E :
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®

/i- Wind farmre 2, g
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Our business at a glance

Making a difference

We are proud o cperae a Groun that makes a
pesitive contribut'on to society acress the UK,
generating renewatle energy. provicing gualiny

rlea;thcare infrastructure and retirermeant living anc

vering high-speed Broadband to underservad
areas of tne country

Energy

Ve currently own 220 energy sites, praducing
375CW & year
a miliom homes

“hat’s encugh ereargy to power cver

ologies. solar wird,
reserve power, ciomass ard andfill gas
complement each otrer well, heloing the UK
meet it5 enargy targefs irrespective of the wea:hef.

Cur combination of techn

The Ferr Commurity Fund is a social enterpnse run
by the Grous,

funds gen

which works o distribute commmun ty
erated from our wnd farms Thes year, the
Fern Community Fund has awarged £1 4m o locai
commurnity groups, suppories 13 local univers ty
students torousgh our Studert Scholarship Funag,
ng provided a w nter fuel subsidy to 706 resiogenis

whng are local 1o the Group's assets

Healthcare

-guality,
contempaorary Lving spaces, wit 379
accommadation Lnits currertly in piace, and

Cur retirement villages provide hign

schemes ir various stages of development offering

over 500 additional accommodation units

A friendly
redirement villages, which s why i our

s we provide central facii ties and &

community s at the reart of our

ceveiopment

3

riub of social activity “or cur residents.

Lending

The {oans we made during the year have nelped o
fund the construction of student accommadation
and much rneeded rezidential properties.

We continue to exterd ‘oans 1o 24 tax drivers and
fleets to erable them o use electric vehicles,

redtuCing carkon emissiors in cur capital

Fibre

Throwgh our fbre aivision we are bulding cut the
fibre cptic breadband network across the UK Four
of our management teams are focussed on
building cut ibre optic broadband networks for
rasidentizl customers and small husinesses, ard a
fiftris bulding a hiore network 1o deliver enterprise
connectwty Our s.xthis a software development
company operating in the hbre sector and
providirg services 1o our grodp COMmpanies.

Witk th
retwork providing connectivity to over ong million

s divizion we have 0ans o oreaie a

propert'es ir tre next trree years, marny of which
are 1n small towns ard villages that don't currently
have access oartermnet carnactivity £t for modern
ways of work ng ard comrnunicating

Not onty are our Agre

o

Lsinesses bringing
connectivity to underserved communities, they are
also gererating employrrent opportunit:es for
young Individuals via tra ring academies and
apprenticeship scremes
Telecoms, with cne of our cormpanig

cand are drving diversity i
5 having

launched a numoer of Intiatives 1o redrut wormen
inte the sector

Home building

Car horme puilding division utiises a hgh

proporiion of sustanabie t mber frame censtruction

methods and instatls air soJrce heat pumps In ai
properties, ieacing the way 1 th s sector ard
helping reduce carhon emissions.

3 SR
~’§@vgamassm3
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Our strategy in focus

Chuay businesses

Energy

Trrough our energy dwision, the Group owns and
operates energy sites which <upply gas and
electriaity into the network, as well as construcing
tes for future zale Of the 220
operaie, 194 provide
re~ewable energy. contributing to the Croup's

rerewable energy &
energy wites hat we awn and

position as one of the argest producers of

re- ewable energy from cormmercal scale solar sites
in the UK Energy sites are typically expeced o
generate siable profits for many years. a5 SuUch
owning and operating these busireszes is attractive
o the Group because of therr potent al to dediver

predictable profis cver tne long term.

Renewable energy sites generate power from
susta rable source: and zell ensergy prodused erther
directly o

network. Mary of our renewable en

@ large inductral consumers or to the

ergy sites also

Gl Mek resutis noa

iy Tor governiment incentves w

portion of the gernerated energy tenefit rg from
locked n' for a upec fied pencd once

ste s oneratoral and accred aton nas

=5 This has reduced some

nergy price forecasts

of tre Mmpact

O
()
-
o
[BE
<
D
=
:
[
>
o
3
u_}
o
(‘D

sites hu It intre UK oo not qualfy for

Jaltt
VESIMENT INCenuves, wWe ara wee:ng mMore

ar
et for sites Like the onez we ow~

Owning anag coerzling energy s4es Is a core gart of
stretegy ena
e chup‘s reft assets

ur*emty makes un atrmost 60% of

This part of our Grodp nas

Did you know?

jenerated hignar returms tris year than exgecles
due to market conditons but crucally ithas the

potential fo provide staole eturms aver the on

term. Tnis combinaton is key 1o our strateqy tc

balance risk and returt across the range of Group

activiiies 1o generate target retuns for sharehoiders

o

“Qur energy sites generated over
3,750 GWh of power.”

Due to tre hign-quality energy sites we owr, we
are aole 1o secure Iong-ter~ financing from
a'\

ngtream barke at comoetitve rates to ennance

mic

, which Felps us 1o deliver the lave! of

While ocdr renewabile erergy business startad Lfe in
fas bult
excertise across other adjacent fechnoiogies
incu.dng
suLpporied by‘ reserve DOWET Dty w

tre salar E‘I”-E‘ng seciorn the Group

Cnomass and lanand gas,
<N oorovide

backuo power w the Nationai Gria. The Groug

seneqts from diversification witin ths

part cf its buziness, since weaker coraitions for

erergy producton from ore tachnoiony often result
i strorger produchion elsewhere Tne Group also
Jains significart oenedt from its scale in th s sector
as our busness is soread acres r 220 sites

vastly recucitg the rsk w Grc-up proﬁtabitit, \‘ one

site suffers an opera:ima\ cisription

if laid end to end, our solar
panels would stretch from

London to Mexico (ity.
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Our strategy in focus

In addition to cur UK sites, the Group s develosing
sites ovarseas, njunsdictions that we understand
wel. These nresenrt an attractive opporiunity as they
cuid an cur sector expertise In courtries at an
earlier stage of rerawable developmeni. Currently
we operae wind farms in Irelanc and Franca and
sclar sites in France ard Australia We have several
wind sies under construction in Po‘tand, France

and Adaralia

During tne year we acquired ning rasarve powe

glants and one energy frorm waste sie. A\lowmg
construction, we sold two wind farrnzs in Finland and

s'r:orziy after the year end we slso sold Darlington

Point, a

arce solar sie in Australia

Heaithcare
Through
operates in tre privas

aur healthcare division, the Group

mredical and retiremert living
sectars. Cur retrerment ;?vmg busiriess, Rangeford,
ownis ard operates two retrement villages in
Wiltshire and North Yorkshire ana s currently

develepirg thres further sites for future operations

Qur private medicat business, One Healthcare Gwns
ard operates two private nospitals in Kent and
Hertfardshire, providing the very best level of care
in madern, well equipped nospital faci-ties.

Sirce returning to norma: working patiarns we have
seer
far their own lreaiment as they face long waiting
ists for NHS trestment Despite the lifting of

oss the UK, Cowid-19
continues o affect the acute ca
stressed NHS and ncreased in

an iricreasa in the numoer of naherts paying

widespread restrictions acr
re sector with a

fection control

measdres that remain in place

Lending
Lending continues 1o be a core part of our busness
and has provided the Grouo with g profitasle and

i cash generstive secior over the past twelve years,
s well-astablishied part of our Group maingy

: sists of property lending, which provides
shor-term financing 1o expenanced pro
: to-let lanclords seeking

fessiona!
properiy developears, buy-
i bridging finance, and deve.cpment fnancirg,

which provides short and medium term financing

to comzanias

A key beneft of the scate of our Group and of the

ousinass that we have bait up in this sector i< our

foanility o mitgate rnisk througr having a large
:onumber of short anc medium term icans spread

across small projects to individual barrcwers We
¢ oproact / mamuge countersarty nsks through
i ounde reful borrower due drugence, taking

“Lending continues to be a

important part of our

business and has provided
the Group with a profitable
and cash generative sector

over the past twelve years.
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crarge Bbass

nngG conservarve loan-to-value rares

1S wWill perform as

T expecred and nese
clp o minimise the impact ¢f

sues or an indwicua loan RS s

furtrer m-ug atec through the value that we lend 1o
individ
whicn s c._;rremtly spread or average

orrowers, relative o our total loan DOGK

( )
L:’J
o
(_D
Mo

MJ
G
3

loans, with an average moividua. oan o E

Fibre division
Our fbre d

companies building finre ne

cperational
crks in tne JK and
one software develogment comgany

ision includes

Trrough our resdental miore bus nesses, we are

bungding new ohys ca- fibire networks for

Ccomriuniues 1IN the UK ang se far have but out

fibee infrazstructure

sunderserved parts of Devon,
Somerset, Dorse:, Wiltsnira, Hamparire,

Worcectershire and the Forme Caunties We are
airming to pass cver one milkon homes cver ne

next three years,

Suild:ng theze large mebwor<s nvolve
targ

s connectrq
catacentres andg telepnone excrianges in the

UK with hornes and businesses, effectively
replacng the copper wires thiat were ‘axd in tne rat
half of the 20tk century. Jurass.c, Swish and
Giganet are verucaty Integrated, as they Goth own
tre fore infra

cuserer ret

struciure ard atsa nave the end

Gonship as the nternet service

proviger or ISP Alipoirts owns fitre nfrasiructure
and wirl onooard other SFs ot

10 sel canrectvity o the end cust

he Allpoirts network
orer,

Through Vortoss we are owlding & network in

Lonoon to supply tusiness-io-tuziness B2ET
enterprise conrectivty direct to busimess

staded over 500krn of

cuswomers Vorposs has
fore optic cables n Lerdon since 2020 and has

a e 10Chos procuct
rmarket, rec ogmsing thaL amuitious Lendon

Ac<ly reguire more than the 1Gbps

corneciyity they've relwed or to oate

We have zeen rap:d growin in our {bre division

sirce 2058 ard we expect 18 division @ continue

foLr bhusiness over time
cly fior of
ard reach
trafast broadband

cpend anprexirnat
falfilits bund
more communit ez in need of u

canital by 202510

olans

Home building
Our ~ew home ouild' ng baziness, Blivia s 3 full

rvice holsecul'der, acauinng land, develop rng ¢

card sul

2qeenty s2llng the ~omes to

ndwviduai buyers Trese stes include a m x of coen
market and affordacle fouses ard srive to delver

The busness s

high gual Ty aspirational ~ores

growing fast wih NOJeCwed annaal turnover of
£250m ang 600 ho

within tne rexft 2-3 yea

oult per year forecasted

)
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Directors

The experienced Board of Directors for the Fern Group are responsible for
determining the strategy of the business and for accounting for the Company’s
business activities to shareholders. They have a set of complementary
commercial, energy sector-related and strategic skills.

Paul Latham 0 el o
Paul iz Chef Executive of Fern and 's responsiole for tne day-to-day running of the
business He is also a managng director of Octopus Investments Limied {"CI7,
where he nas worked since 2005 O s a key supoier of resource and experiise
to Ferni Paul's dual role ensures that this relationstip works effectively and n the
cestinterests of Ferm's shareholders. Paul Fas had vancus general management

a

and irternal consulting roles acress a numier of sectors and o7 1gs with im

a wealth of ndusTy and busingss experience

s Haeith Willay S Fao ol owe Ty e
LY

Keith iz an associate professor of sirateqy and entreprenedrship at London
Bustess Scrooi He 3.50 holos varous nor-executive directorship: and advisory

roles at hign growth ang more matare companies. [0 his role as non-exgcutive
chairman he 15 respansiote for the effecuve operation oF the Board, as well
as its governance. He brings 1o the Fern buciness independent commercial
experience gainea from his time i academia, crivate eguity investment,
consJdliing and various hands-on aparational roles.

Peter Barlow

Peter mas cver 30 years' experience in ‘ntermaticnal financing of infrastructure and energy
As a senor execulve for International Power, Peter was responsitle for arranging over
$12bn of project and corporate funding, as well as banking retationships and treasury
achvities. He has spert over 20 years working internstionally for HSBC, Bank of
America and Nomura, financing acquisiions ard greenfeld projects in the erergy
and infrastructure sectors His comoiraton of Board-level inancing and energy
exgper ence over NUMercus enargy sub-sectors, and his alb-round krowledge of
ail the sectors n which Fern operates, adds signdizant valueg to the operation of
e Board as well as s strategy forrnation and deployment.

Tiry Arthor oot Ol

Tirr 15 & chartered accountant with more than 25 years' international expernerce
as a finance director of bath public and private companies. initially he waorked
for Price Waterhouse im Birmingham and Chicago. More recertly he was Chief
Financial Oficer of Ligntsource Reneweable Energy Ltd, a glebal leader in the
furdirg, deveiopment and long-terr operation of solar photovaltaic projects.

Tim brings extensive financial and accountancy knowledge to the 3card as
well as an urdersianding of dynamic lechnoiogy businesses gained from g
execulive positions




Principal risks and uncertainties

Principal risks

Management ideni’y, 355855 and manage rsks

associatec with the Gro r v
sirategy. “usks arise from ex

onare nrergnt commercg

anc from Qoeratiaras rIsks Coniam

system

business. Overail risk exposdre is maragaed across

tne Group

simess abectives and
mal sources, those
risks in the marxet,
edwithir trhe

hrougn the diversification of acuvit es,
both by sector and geograchy

the risk. We also .nclude our assas

ed the same

the Weli“f)od of the nsk nas i~crease
s empioyed within the Poorrema

The prncpat rns«s that tne Group are exoosed to
are gescribed below, along wath the m-ugating
acticrns we ake 1o reduce the potential impact of
sment of wretner

d, decreased

The energy sector 5 expenercng
sigrificant turbulence and there 2

& ris< inat forecast levels of incorme
Are not ac wpmfj due to charges n
wholesale energy prices, cff-take
COrracts or (mver'm”wv subsidies
Due o s wirbulent eraranment,
te potentia, for inc:
interventon gy the
ansk

Cnanges in Government policy
mMay result in reduced income
sreams witrnin the grous aue to
add;noma' ‘vam

Operationat rtsk

Levels of energy produced may
ce 'ower tnan anticinatec aue tc
sub-optimat weather condinons
Cr performanrce s
equIigmen®, wkich may result in
signitcant urp.anneg downtirme

Financial risk:
avenues (from ene gy
generanonl or sale proceeds

from tre cale of sites) g sted

from overseas sites are lower Tnan

CQue to fuctuations im
fore gn exchan ;c raes

Construction risk:
Constructon of the stles ta<es
QNgEr Gr 15 Mare cosly tnan
ant cipated d i to resource
avarailty orincreasad cost of
rawy matern

Mitigations

= Contracts are enfered i whi d‘ ﬁy the ncome f/)r a
porucn of the energy herera‘ed Dy Our 5ies

» Long-term governmens backed offiake agreements sre
N olace, such 35 the Rerewabie Covgation Cervficat on
{"RCCT screme SWQ of our energy income was
gererared frorm ROC revenue.

« e engage with the g(,»emrmnf and tre Office of Gas and
Ciectiaty Marrews ["OFCEMT) o co te 1o an Irdustry voice
withy policy makers who set future regulatry requrements,

. Urwofeaictab;l\ty cf the weather s mtigated throughk
versiication of technclogies and locstion of sites
. Regurf servicing of essels is ungertaken o ersare assets
are <eptn goad condition and rmurimise the 7sk tha*
acsels are Jravai.abie for a .onger per od

¢ Managemenr ensares oniy a s aH ocrton of the Groun's

assets aro revenues are axpeciod t udmvw from
TYEFSS tes

« Tne Groun eners fixed once contracts with contrazions
e

where auDrooriate to red UCs eXpos e 10 Ner

i
Lo

NO Cnangs

4

ircreased ‘cue

ro volatle FX

FOVYEITIENLE]

NoO Cnang
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M:tigatlons

Market risk: . ‘ﬂaﬂagemﬂm req. J‘arl/ reviews the compettive lar dscape

EXPECiRT sales from custerrers in target duild areas to ersure pans do not confiict vtk

are lower than a~hic:pated due 1o otner alternative network operaiers

mcreased coempettion from omer « Management ergages preactively with the Ofce of

DrovIGers Cormunications and the Governmeni to ensdre the

A charge in policy by e benefits of smaller ooerators are well understood and s Increasedd
inferests are approcnately represented. ldue 1o maore

regulslors i favour of larger
aperators could impact our ablity
o deliver planned developrnen:,

COMEentors N

We are an active participant in relevant industry bodies, T A ket
e market)

parr cua"j hose reprasenting alternative netwcerk

reduzing revenues and efficen QUErErs

gzinec from a larger oresence in a

pdmcq\af area

Constructlon rtsk . T}”e Cf Up haz cortra nurape- of different

Ceorstruchon of the natwaork supplers to reduce the ta any oreindvidual

takes \orgf’ aris rore coitly ertity Seleclion ¢f gutsource partners 1s managed Ircreased (due

than anticigated due to resource through a detar rld elfeTall ‘meht process with long term to ircreasing

ava 'au\‘\"f o ricreased cost of visibity of work allowing partriers 1o plan Anancial ana defgla‘?;efr;

raw materias. people rezcurcas accordingly, the sector as

« VWhere supply chain croblems are expected for critical ltemat;ve

iters our teamns generally have & months stock of fibre, promggfii le
duct and other materia.s o hard, and advance order Bonled)

tec%n ra\ eGuwpmem ".M”“ umg .ead tlmef

Operational risk: « Gur networks are built in 2 resilient way with diver

Netwerk service 15 interrupied or route options should a faiure occurin one rOUte m
urrel able lead'ng to potentia: loss This, combined with an anibity to dent’y and resowe

of custorrers and reputationa! connecuvity issues guicky, minirmises downtime of the No change
uamage Pc*workr

S i
S i
Shieiney R
L i e it
shibeb e Ras BARTRI M ER L 5 ERA LR Ral ] wa.au 4. 4%
i

A M
»ﬂ..uma sndided
;nwmgwu e




2 | STRATEGIC REFORT

Principal risks and uncertainties

Mitigations

Market r sk « Tnetezrns pre-actively manage our posinion in the
Ircreasirg inflation and Tterest markeigiace and are DreDared to enforce wrece needad if
rates lead (G & market-wide a loar moves e detauit,
affordabil ty ssue, resulting n a » Ourloars are made at conservat ve loan-to-value [ILTV) RS

— : =y DR - . . R
drop in progerty vaiues acrd ratios w ik 3 maxmum LTy of 70% ‘

NO change

sectors of real estate. This may
meact cur aoiet to recover a
loarn i “uli tarocugn a refinarce

or sale
Counterparty risk: « Loans are sed st physical underlying secunsy,
lL.oans may be rrade to ur suitabte such asa charge over *k proparty of other assets of the
couneroartias, impacting our borrower, These are typical'y on a first charge basis ©
ability to recover the l0an balance ansure Taximum chance of recovery snoule enforcement
e full, actior be resced
« Thorough due diigence is performead pnor o weting
lcans, mcluding craperty or lanc va.uaions and . ftG‘ ECONDMIC
checks dore on borrower comatel
. cars are wrtten for asseis undar corstruction,
milEstones and Covenants are out in olf 610 ersure

are complete prior o re L

Mltlgat:ons Change

Market r|sk (Healthcare and . Pfa’”nmﬂ consents on undevelooed Ij"o are ophn :ed
Home Building): mArirnRe revenues 3nd reduce the risk of 58530 aie
A falin houwse onces could

rnoact cur awlly o generate

expectes revende from the sa'e

of agartrments r our ret;rs ent

vw%l ges and houses bult by Elivia

Constructn n risk {Healthcare = The Groun eners fixed choe cont S5

and Home Building): to reduce exnozure to INcreasing mdenal costs s

Consiruct an takes ionger or o The Groun only works witn reputab.e 370 parties with 5 Free]

s more costly than antCipated strong trace record of deavernrg simear orojects, Ng charge

due "o TESCUrTe EValaniity o .

increased cost of raw "nate

Health and Safety risk » The Growp mamain nrocedares

(Healthcare}: relating :o tne provsion of redica, services We rey sw s

Trig crever ion OF iInjury © trrougn conductng reqular inernal rspect ors and are

avoidable loss of e of 2ur 5.50 tubject o externa’ inspechor < by regulatery bodies —_—

catierie s of utmostimeaoriance « THe Group has nsurance colices in glace o cover e
fimaracia Losses due to rnedical ma pracice clams O Cange




Risk

e B A R 0B D S SR B R S 4

Market risk:

Anincrease In base rates may
necrease Ccosls on debt facilies,
IMpaciing the Group's ab lity to
service debt as it falls due.

Liquidity risk:

Poor rranagement of cash within
the Group could -mpact the
Group's akinty o meat obiigatians
as ihey fall due

Health and Safety risk:

The safety o our employees
and th employad mraugh
centracts are of paramount
impcrtance. There s 2 risk tnat
accidenis in the workp.ace could
result In sensus injury or death.

05e

Cyber Security risk:

An atiack onour 'T systems and
data could i2ad to disruption

of cur operations and loss of
customer data. Loss or misuse
of data may result in reputatona.
damage, requlatory action urder
GDPR ard potential fines

Mitigations

« Where ficating rate deot is in place (wnere irterest varies
intine with an underlying benchmark ratel. the Group
enters into hedging arrangements tC £x a portion of these
payments throughout the termr of the faciity Hedging
arrangements are cutlired n Note 21 of the financial
statemerts

« Adetailed cash f.ow forecast is preparaed and reviewed
by rranagement on 5 monthiy basis, ncorporating cash
availakility and cash reguirements across the Group. On at
least a guarterly basis this Is shared with the Board.

« The Group moritors bars covenants 0N an ongoing pasis
tC ensure conunded adherence to covenants Where
covenants can't be met, forecasts are dpdated for the
lower cash ava lable as 4 result of the restrictior.

+ The Group has a flexizie fnance faclity which can be
arawn on at shori notice to meel mrediate business
reads.

We have deve oped robust Fealth and safety poiicies in

.
compliance with 1SC25001 across the Groun o ensure
he wel-aing of our staff

.

eattr and safety training 15 providea to ous staff and
contractors on a regular bas s.

o We employ a Chief Information Secusty Oicer "
who i responsible for data secunty across the Group and
repors quarterly to the Board

o The CiSO works closely with our businesses to ensure
adequate standards of security anc irformation
managermeni are met

» Each of our businesses that hold custorner data nas ther

own cedicated resource for i1 and secur ty

The sirategic report was approved oy the Board of Drectors o 16 Decemper 2622 and s

PS Latham
Director
16 December 2022
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Corporate governance

Section 172 {1) statement

The Board consider that they have adhereg ¢ the
requirements of secton 177 of the Companies Ac
2006 ithe "Act’), and have, ir. gocd faith, acied in a
way tnat would be most tlkety o oromote the
success of the Group for the Beneflt of 1ts meTbers
as a wholie thaving regard o all siakebo.ders ard
ction 172011a

the decisions taker auring the year ended
3 June 2022

matters set out I se ) of tre AcH

I the performamce of 115 duty t© oremeoke the

t up, the Boara hac regarc 1o a
ncleding the li<ely
onsequarce of any decicions r the ong term, and

e s ¢f the Group s key stakehowders

to baild rust and ensure o fuly understands the
potentizl impacis of the decisians it makes Tne
Board fulhls these duties partly by delegatic
comriitess ard the boards of subsigary
undertakings, wno cperate waltmin a corporate

<.

covernance fremewcrk across tho Groug

otrer areas over the course of 0

;ﬂanciaL;aear

including the Group's busness stralegy, Key risks,

siakenolder-relaied matters, diversity and INciusvity,
environmental matters, corpcrate resnonsitity, and
nce and legal

governance, carnolia matters,

Principal decisions
We defne principar decisions taken oy the Board ss
trose dedisions nat are of a strateg c rature ard

tnat are sigrificent to ary of our key staxenoclder
groups. The Board conai e

» Fvaluatirg s

InCregs rg wmd operations, wrich 15 part o

our rerawables gvisior o August 2021 tre

Grour acqured a large scale, ready 1o consiruct

wind SE'CE n Austrata This deployment aligns

with the Croop's strategy 10 conirug to

develop renewatle ch orovige

prediciable leng-T
Board considered the opoorturity and how it

aigned with

2yenye strezms T he

cur ODC tves o ma Ed oos e

conmoution to the communty and envircnment
Tne Group decded to expand N0 oUr nawes?
division, house bulidirg. In May 2022 tre Grous

acquired Eliviz homes, a ful-service property
developer orovidirg services rorn the design,
to tre eng neening ard tnen final corstruction
to ersure the celivery of quatity warkmansh p
Crversifyirg the Group's asset Case and enterng
into th s new secior hasz ceen wel! thought

cul with org term growih in mind. The Board
azsessed the sirategic conortundies within the
e ahead with tris

acquisiton, consider ng how this would impact

secicr before decicing © move

ex1sTNg businesses wittir tne div §'or anc now
alignea witn the Grouap's strategic ob ectives 1o
delver long-term vaue ard predictable growtn

for our sharerolders.

Reviewing and decidirg 1o move ahead with

Increacing ciomass operationz which < part of
cur renewalb.es civsicn. n Ocioher 2027 the
Group acquired a large scale, wasre—to—energ
constructon ste in Scotland. This decloyme

aligns with the Grouo's strategy to continue o

,jyx

Q

dirversify the Group, develop rencwable energy
sites which provide predicteb.e, lorg-term
revenue streams, and provide resiliznce agains

—

wnclesale grcirg charg

73

e
mMariet *he Board consideray
anac how it a.gred wih our chiectives 1o
make 3 pos bva conncution o the community
and ervircriment.
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Corporate governance

+ The board decided to change audit firms via a
tender process for the year ended 30 3 2022,
Tre Group had changed sign ficantly snce the
orevicus auditors were apponted and therefore

T the vaiue for

ure

we were unable o reliably asses
money we recewved Three firms underwent
thie tender process and Srnst & Young LLP were
selecied because of the'r strong commercial

understanding of our business, efficient aucit

methocology and value for money.

Business strategy

Our business strategy is set out o1 pages 11 to 14 of
the Strateq:c Report, Management prepares a
detailed Group cudget whicr is agproved by the

s tne bas s for

the Groun's rescurce pianning and deployment
n

Board on ar annual pasic ang forr

decisicns in rmalking decisions concerning the
businezs plan, the Board nas regard firg

forarrost tots strategic ‘cous, but alse to

Tand
other
mratters saen rterests of 1s varnous
stakeholder
acuons on the

3z the
5 and the long-term impact of its
Group's futdre and reputation

Shareholders
Shiarehclder relations ard generaung shareholder
icderat:
making sirateqic gecsions. The prime medium by
which the Group comrmunicates with shareholders
t and finarcal
rovide shareholders with
a ful understanding of tne Groug's das
results This informaticon is published on our website

VALLIE 1§ 3 ey CONS or wren the Board 5

& throwgn the annusl report
staternents, which am to pr
aoiivilies an

at www . ferntrading.com

Employees
The Group's employess are fundamenal to the
overall success of the business The Directors “ulil

their duty to empoyees by enitrusting oversight 1o
subsigiary Boards which the Cheef Executive of the

Group aiso site on,

The directors of the subsid
manage tne day 1o day decision making
engagement and cornmurnications witn employees

ary undertakings

faebesriadengennann

and ensure that people are reated fairly and are
valued with respect to nay, beneﬁt anc conditions
We fuily realise that our emp.oyees wish to be
nformed and consulted on matters affecting their
work and to be invoives in problem-solving
affecting ther own areas of rnterest and
raspons.iity The Group s irmly committed 10 &
policy of good commurnicat on et all levels and we
air to establish a2 climate which constanty
encourages tre cpen flow of informraton and

ideas Presently this inciudes rmonthy t=am briefings

at g iccal level and the publication of montrly key

performance indicaiors covering output, cperating
zosts, ana health and safety.

v of cur ermplayees in the

ace s a contnual focus for the Group. given
res

its broad opera?ionaz business. The Dreciors review
Healtn & Safety Reporting at each board meeting to
ensdre aporcprate policies anc procedyres are N

place 1o protect tne heach and safety of our

owoyees and contractors Wneare there are
these are followes
ug and re <, with the Board

havirg overs ght of tne actions taken

potema. defciencias ¢
cived on a tmely bas’

IS5UES,

The Groun cutsources activibies and maﬁagemeft
of certain ooeratioral actviues to external suppliers,
Where activities are cutsourced the Board ensures
that they are managed by reputabie suppliers wno
mieet all the relevant industry and reguiatcry
commitments as well as treating empoyees farly
Expected standards are documertad in alt service
ceniracrts and adherence to thase are continually
rrortored by Board tarough their

agresrmant with Octopus Investmensis Lmited

Lervice

Suppliers and customers
The Grous acts 'n a fair mannear w

ail suppiers

and customers and seeks 1o maintain srong

business relstionships witn them This is acheved

by all cortracts being negotiated through a fair and
ansparent tender process which includes

the impact on the long-term

assessin

ohjectives of




r
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Corporate governance

tre Group We review our payment orocessng

v qainst cortracts every sk manths (o ensure
sunpiers are pald promptly and this irformat’o

the comoany s availabie on ine www.gov. uk

wWensite.

The Groun ensures it acts farly and in a rransparent

rmanner to all cusiorars arsoss a
services, and actively ergages
or defgults The

Il div-sions and
to resolve any disputes

Soard c%csely MONITOrs Customer

metrics and engags: Tleam o
Lndersiand e is5Les |

ormers sxpectat ons

nol mes! Q.

The Boarg considers Octoous Investmentz Lm

to be a key Dusness partner and suophar with

respo-sibility for tne provision of ooerationa.
oversignt, Anarcal aomiristrator snd compary

secretanas services,

Community and environment
Tne proevsion and operat.on Of sustainanie
infrastructure 1s at the cenire of the Croug's

trateqic goals. Throwgh its business activities e

©

TouUp seeks o make a positive confrbution o the

0 &)

ommunity, envronment ard econcrmy Our
re-ewalble energy business 1s helpirg the U mesr

1e renewable energy targets, our private hospita.s
have suppertec the NHS throughout the Cov.d-19
panderrmic by

NHS patiets that

providing traatrert for non-Covid-19

cihenwse cowd Mot have beer

carried cut, and our fiore networ< wil gvs peopie
C

ommunities access e hgh-soeed

Business conduct
Asg Directors our ntention is 1o behave responsitly,

T onerate tre NUSINess with

ersunng

of conduct are goverrance cxpected of a business
such as curs Our
strategy {outlired «

sectors and work with other businesses that share

ntention through our busimess

on pages 11 to 14) s to operate in

our values

Business ethics and governance

Tre Beard is responsible for ensunng tnat the
acuvities of t~e Group ard its varous businesses ae
conducied N compaance with the law and
applicable governance and regjulatary regimes, ard
In adherence wth preva lirg pbest practce for the
relevant industry. Tris inciudes reviewing internal
ontrais ersurng that there is an approonate

F ¥

[0

0
A5
-
o
R

> of skilis ard excenerce represented on the

[on}
9]
?j

anc ercurng that the Pnaraal ssaterrents
rue and far view of tre state of affairs of the

o
=z
@ W
9

Furtrner detail can ke found in the staement

S o

o O
&)
T3

i directors responsit Ites on page 2900 the year
t2 20 June 2022 ro areas of corcern have been

lagged In tis regarc

Employee, human rights, social and community
issues, environment policy and anti-corruption
and bribery matters

Tre Board's paicy on enpioyee, burman rights,

soc:al and community 1ssues, envircr mert oolicy

and anti-corruo: on ana Crioery manters s aiscussed

L

mn the Directars’ P.eport on page 29 The Bosra

actively promaeies 3 corporate culiure that s based

on eth.cal values and henavioars.
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Group finance review

Reoview of foancial statements

The purpose of trus report 13 to provige addinora,
explaratory in‘ormation on the financial statemers.
11 IMeasLnng our performarce, the financ al
measures that we Lse include hose that have hae
derrved from our reported resLlis in arder o
eliminate factors thal distort year-cn-year
compansors, These are considered nor-GAAPR
firancia. meas .ires.
A reconciiation of these to the firancia! results can
be found in ~ote 28 of the rotes te the financial

ctatermerts,

The financ.al staterrents show assets at cost, as such ¢
they go not reflect thie future value thet we expect (o
derve from these busineszes To that exte :
accounting cerformance may differ ma@r*ia‘.ly from

the sharz price anc may nst reflect changes in the

full market value of asses or businesses owred by

the Grodp.

A nidmber of acquisit.ons were made dur.ng the
year INcluding rine cperat onal resaerve power siies,
a wasle to energy site under Construcion, a
construcucn ready wind farromn Austraaa and
evertesn solar roofios sites under construction,
Shortly after the year end, in July 2022, we sold
Darington Fuint, a large solar site in Australia

v

To support continued expansion, we nad cuilt g
cashi reserves at year end of £256m whicn included
a large cathinflow of £97rm from pacing externat
refrancing r Darlingior Point prior o sate

{restated) Movement
2022 2021
£'000 £'000 %
EB‘T DA__ e 194,9_1_5 e 3.388(357/
Proﬁt '\obs; Defore tdx” S 47,504 (22, 663) 7@,2.6'/ - ﬁlO% -
. 360901 385512 |
Cash S 256,415 172, 478 6793; - 4;/w
Ne,d&m et et e e e e e 793159 ,,,,,,,,, 599440 L 93]?9 IR H/
Netafs’L, R o & - 2,219,448 1 887 842 - - 3316{)7 o - 153;

Financiat performance
Overal., the Group has reported a profit before tax of - 3
£476m for the year erded 30 June 2022, whichisa |

E70. 3m improvernent on the pror yvear (2021
£22 7rriioss restated). Overall EBITDA increased by

87% to £195m (2021, £104m restateq), which is
arimarily due to mcreased enerqy generation as weil

as increased energy prices

Revenue increased by £287m 1o £712m (2021

‘Earmings before nterest, tax, cepreciation and amortization

E£425m) wh-cri was pregominanty drven by a 84%
ncrease in revenue withir our energy division Tnis
growth ¢ two fold, increased energy generation
from havirg owned/operated one of cur blomass
plants for the full year and a large solar plant ir.
Australia reaching commussioning: and a significant
NCrease N average energy prices aver the year due
to the mismatch between supply ard dernand,
exacerbated oy the ongoirng conflict in Ukraine
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Revende growihn was sirangest in our ensrgy

AVISION Dut we 350 saw a marked rmiproverrent in
reverniue fro
our busin

lockdowns required by tne Covid-"9 pandem ¢

3T cLr retrement vllages. This part of

ess has rebounded well from the

respense, selling 41 units ir the year (an increase of

52%)arda
£20.4m (205

=ds
mincreasing in revenue of £75m o
21 E12 7.

Revenue from cur iending disson saw a drop of
4
25% to £42m

2021 ES7rmY due o a srratler average

loan ceok over e year as cash was made avallatle

to grow other paris of the business

Operating expenseas for the year were n Lne with

our expeciatons, with the ncrease orirrariy driven

Dy increased operatng Costs i1 our fibre dwision a5

T has exganaed Refinancng external debt to

reamproved erms over the pasl two yesrs has

» a dec nterest costs of £2 5

rease i

SO
cortricuted to
to £25.6m (2021 £36 1m)

Included in tne r ar s a profis of

recogmsed ont two werd farmrs
and a realisanon of £1 6rm of aeferrec cons ¢
or sGia

rstes sod n previous years

Financial position

Cortinued shareholder interest ard rvestrrent »ay

seen ret assefs grow 0 £2,219m (26 2 BE8m
restateay. e yecar erded 30 June We

(2021 15Cmj f
21 EZ
comgarative year numpers include £1

issusd 120’7"\ share for a tota:
Bi7rmy Tre
B95m of

rue T_;rur"“

censiderat' on of £204m (20

corsiderat on (Glﬁllﬁg to Group rest

Foy ey

MNet currert aszets of ESS8m 2027 EEO%m restaten)

nave ncreased by £145m, reflecting the reducidaon in
exizrna: inancng and g7 increase it work 'm progress

o1e]
;Solfr“ .40

cperatirg actvites de
E342m;
long-term fnancirg and capit

cased to £42m (2021
wrich has been utlised alongside extena!
al ra:sed by new share
issues i grow the busness We have invesicd

Avre proadibard s
the past four years which win require further capital
over the next 3-5 years, :ncreasirg our
diversificat-on across zecters

substantially into the eCTOr over

expengifure

Of the cash he

Gur enargy, horme o

o atb yeas end, E211m was held in
building i fore subsiciaries,
amber of constructor and
nfrastructure projents o gcath o

and
whare there are a n
nder Way, regl rlr.

Or sidge paymenis Jue in the

Goodw |, at 2541 (2027 £567rn rest
smber o the

e aeaLisition of some

ol

cortraes to bo a signiiicant nt

halance sheet and arnses on
\cquired bus.ne

renewable engrgy stes, O

busiresces sses, for exaraple

n ~ave a marxet value

in excess of the company's

treir rebshee fuiore incorma sbr

convertior radu.ras that only dent

ed on the balance shoe! so the accouns
canno: record the balance of me adomionat rrarkes

value which comprses tre fulure orofits that stes

are exnected w ceiver Tre addiional value in

s themseives {such
j\ull

excess of e value of fxed ass:

as =olar pareals) s recognised as g

Fur simply, the market value of the energy
generatio

bus resses) refiec

n busiresses (or indeed any operatoral

s the value of future expectad

profits, not the cost OF smMIply DUYING tanig ble assets
such as so.ar paﬂets ar wind turbires We pay
rrarke” value “or the sites we acaure, which may
exceed the value of dentifab.e zssets such as the

SOlar panels ano 7 gererates goodwi L wich
o}

of the exceced

M

ae s o ; -1
sentaly represents the vaige

future mcome streams, Gooowill recogn seg

craduslly be written off, typ cally over the lfe of the
S i

e, ds QKDFF“’U feldrms are rean
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Group finance review

Secter performance

Energy
As econamic activity and global demand increased

{2021: £1%6rn rastared), partially drver by increased
site costs where £120m was incurred at our

throughout the year, zo tos did wholesale energy

onices, driven Ly movernents in comrmodily ornces,

bicomass sites ard £93rr at our reserve power site
the orices for raw materials have increased, on

wich resulted in the overail increase n reverue aversge, by 89% aque to ar increase in the supnly
earned across our enargy sites. These marke: { COSis . Tre corbined cost of sates for the reserve
factors have resulied In an incregse in reverue of Popower and briomass sites increased by £110m to
REY 10 FEG3m 12021 F320m) E217rn 12021 107m) it should e noted that the

o e revenue generated by the biomass and reserve

i power sites increased ny £192rm during the year to

E”_66m f2uz1 /6ﬂ restated) rdie nng the : ~
o y : £E353 1 £181mj.
significant ncrease ir energy reveniue Cvesaltotal !
ooeraug costs nereased by £130m to E327m :
FY2022 FY2021 FYaop2z FY2021
Production Production External External
{MWh) {(MWh) Availability Availability
diomas 1,050,038 885,553 84.6% 83 2%
_andhli Gas 240,226 255,526 97.9% G76%
Reserve Power 403,355 147 12356 94.2% 92 0%
Solar 554,858 £17.112 97.7% 36 0%
Wind 851,214 881,241 90.5% 9% 1%
Total 3,099,690 2,682,019
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Healthcare
coniributes £46m

(2021 £42m; to Group reverues for ihe year
e mpac

Heaithcare cperations

reflecting of increased revenue 1

Ramgeford Sales of apartments at the retirement

vitiages nhave rencundead well fram the lockdnwns
required by tae Covid-19 pandemic response,
selling 41 units in e year (an ncrease of S2% from

2022 and increas ng revenue by £7

Lending

revenue strea for the year T
reduced by 6% o EA6Lr at tne vear erd (2020

FZ286m) This raduct

Mo £20.2m

o i the gan boo< enables

cask to be availabie for opportanities across cther

sectors with r the Group mcuding a
canstruct:on The

cquisitinns

tied sligntly where we have 1ssued a aigher
number of smaler loans wathin the residensial
in the
develoornent secior ana the commercial secto

sector, &L we. as maore g ger loansg

'TT

EEITDA
of £& 7/m
vear, This moverrent reflects a

for the lend'ng diwvision decreased to 2

and

ma<e-up of the lcan book ~as

3

loss

from a profit of nearty £lm n the prior
proviscr of £25rm n

tre loarn book agains: lcans to reserye power sites

Cl)
Q

a "J”J‘J'SI N aganst

a realthcare loan o £14m

As a relatively new division, all the fbre busnesses

are nine tuid cnase and are staft"rlg o add

cusicrrers to ther retworks By 30 2

civ e &N nad nula passed over 150,000 ~omres

o

anucinate e
3-5 years g5 we expand the fibrs networks
Althougn ouleing a fbfe retwork s capia

and leaas to 3 prys.cas astel o

1

n balance steer,

ine 2022 ¢

il stage to conunus for a further

[ ntengye

the

divis:on alsc incurs large operating experses as the
egtions and develop
market presence. Overall tne d vision reported an
EBTOA loss of £55.4rm (2021, £25.5m logs), which
sinlre with e T r
developmental stag: of the div:sion

s will be

As we puld these relworks cut, the asse

recoqrises o the balance sheet ar cost which
cannot noude future vade which s expected o be

qgenerated 3¢ the 3esats have Baarn intarnally

generated, This s differert 1o the share price where
tre future value exgected to be ganerated from the

assets 15 Inciuded

Home building
Elivia Forras was acqguired in May 2022 and has
trerefore had Lmited inrpact on the financ sl
parformance during the year, The busness s
forecas: to detver £78m revonue and £5 5
F2ITDA for the year ended 30

the firs?

0 June 2027 Results

from guarter of 2022 indicate the Gusiness

15 Droadly perforrning in ine witn oxpectaions

Funding and liquidity
Ours

trategy < to secure iong-terr Snarcing at

conservative .evels frorm mansirear Carks G
znhance retums from cur rerewable energy
businesses. Al year enc we nad £1,044
external oroject finarcing witr £441m of

headroom availatle

Tres ena

marxet consiclens to have s

oles La o acguire busiresses that the

as oredi«ctable cost base, reven.e sireams
G

iovernment incentives or praven technelagy ard as
sLCh have .ower returns v

be insuffcient for our sharerclders, |3 ai20 a:lows Uz
flext-liy in fn3rcong our DUSTIEsses
cas~ flow We ce!l
strategy wouid
return a

FUve Impact on businass
and snarenoider vaue over the org term.
of Gur interesr cavabie is fixe

ANty eXposes 1o
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the current interest rate voatility We cont.nually

review anancing ngements to ersure tnat they
are compeatitive Prd optimized for the needs of the
“is managed it an agile

xible finanice faculity

business. To ensure Cas

mannier, we mamrain a f
woich can be drawr down o repaic to meet

immediate business nesds.

o

Looking ahead

The SGroun nas rebounaed well from the sffects of
the Covid-19 parderric ard has ocutgerformed
expectal

ons. Whilst the current econom.c cuiloox
15 one of crallerge and uncertaimty, we amt\c'\pate
minimal impact on our results due to the
predictable reverue strearns and cost base, and
25 Coupled with the

ave built Lo across the business,

essental rature of sur actvit

diversificat oriwe h
we are positionad strongly for these turbuent

times anead.

We contifue to pay partcular attenhon ¢ the twn
cnadenges of 13 ng Nterest rates and surgim
nflaticn - botr e werns of lending ard portfo
managmmm, These trerds impact ail areas of the
Groun's bus.ress and are Vkely to re-rain for the
foreseeat.e future, so we remain disciplinred 'n our
nvestment approach, continung o montor the

situatior carefully and taxing a prudent approach to

any current and emerging rigks.

We are positive agout the continuad opportunity
For growt” and continue © beleve that the
cositoned weli to take advaniage of
ﬁwi’h opportunities across s core business
ergy, lendng and hicuse building
cperatons are well establsreg in the market and
continue 1o make excellent progress witn robust
perrormamces in the new firancia: year. In line with
ce the year end we sold a

Sur p[anr‘ed strategy, sin

i profit, with

large solar farm in Australa for a sma
s being redeploved into new opportuniies

procesd

Dep‘.oymem into finre contindes to rolt aut ir ting
wWith exce

more than

ations and the Group has now passed
lSOJOOD‘ homes by our fibre networks
Sales activity Im our nealtncare civision rernains
sirong. with nearly 40% of anrual sates budg
already
the end of September

completed or reserved across ail sdes as at

Announced withim the auturmn statement as part of
the 2023 Finance B, the UK Government will

nact a 45% winafall levy ("Electricity Cenerator
Levy" or "EGL} on wholezale energy market
revenues in excess of £E75/MWh This s expectad to
from 1 January 2023 to 2L
wilt be publs

’j on the initia.

aoply to the Groug
tMarcn 2028 The exact legislatic
in mid-Gecember 2022, but ba

i )_

release an impact analysic has been cerformed

as at 30 Septermoer 2022 We esuate the impact
10 be a drop In vaiuation of approxmately E45m
for the stes affected, which corrnputed to 3
2.0p decrease in the share prnice to 177.0p in

December 2022

We expect ta generate strong operat ng returns
from cur estabished divisions for the ccrr:zng YyEars
N addition to the anticipated outflows

construcnicn phase assets. The healthcare and

Or Gur

fibre divisicns are well into ther buld shase in tne

wth our lorg-term strategy and we antcioate

strong returns over the next five 1o seven years
Upon Matunty

PS Latham
Cirector
16 December 2022
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Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2022

The directors present their report and the audited consotidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2022

Group Anance review on page 25

Tre dwe-"tmr nave not recommended payment of
a dividend (2021, £Mil;.

Tre drectors of the Company who were in offics
during the yeaf and up o the date of sigrirg the

financial statements wa
PS Latham

KJ Wiley

PG Barow

T Acthur (appointed 1 July 2022)

IJ

efer (0 nota 23 in the Notes to tre inancla.

satemenis

Refer to the Strategic Regort on page 8

R .

Refer 1o the Strateqic Regort on page 12

Tre Group's oojectives ang polic.es on financial r sk
maragement INcluding nforrnaucn o1 the
exposure of the Group to credt rizks, Lauidity raks

and market risks are setout ir note 21 to the
francat stalerments The Group's pringipal niks are

set out in the strategic report on oage 16

As germittea oy secrhor 4142 (11 of the Compani

ACT £006, the arectors have elected o disclose

irformanon regqu red to te in e dire
by Scredule 7 of the 'Largs and Medium-sized
Comparies anc Groups tAccourts and Repors)
Regulations 2C0&" Ir t-e strateqic report

-

eccgmses that a corporate il
Dvalues arg behaviours is an

assel. Tre Grous erdeavours 1o condy

business with: integrity, in an 2thical, professional

nd respons:ibie man-er, treaung our errploye

cusiorrers, susplers and partr‘:efs WL COUrtey

and respect.

Apclicat ons for employment
are given full ard far comS!dEfa:‘-o” fo
vacancies, havng r»@g d to therr particuar aputudes
and shulities. Sho
whle i the GI’GU%’)'E errpic-ymer‘.t every effort s

cersen becerre disablec

[&7]

rade to retgy Meam 1n era

p.oymert, gving
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We fully realise that cur emcloyees wis to be
informed anc consulted on masters affeching ther
work and to be invoived in problem-solving affecting
their cwn areas of interest and resgonsib lity

The Croup ts drmly committed to a poucy of gooa
commumcaton at al levels and we aim to establisn
a climate which constanily encourages the open

flow of .nrormation and ideas Presently this
mchudes monthly team briefings Vtevel ard

at 3 10
the publication of morthly key performance

ndicators covering cutput, operating costs and

nealth and safety

The Grouo has in place an agreement with OCtopus
irvestments Lirmited to provde servicas to the
Grous covenng operational oversight,
aarorustration, company secretarat and company

ACCOLNting

The Beard aaopted a formal envircnmenial, social
and corporate governance UESGY) policy on

50 September 2020, The Groug recognises tne
rneed to conduct its busi—ess, in a marner that s
Ironment,

responsible to the eny wherever possible.

As a low energy user, the Company has elected not
to discloze data on s energy and carbon usage.
Ferr Trading Limited s the onty Corpany in the
Group that meets the reporting criteria and
therafore Nno information s provided for the Groun
as a whoie

The Group's has an Anti-Bribery Policy which
introduced robust procedures o ensure full

compliance with the Bribery Act 2010
that the nighest stanaards of professional ethical

and to ensure

conduct are maintaned

In accordance with the recommendatons of “he UK
Corporate Covernance Ccce, the Board has
considered the arangements in place (o encourage
staff of e Group or manager of the Group (o raise
corcerrs, n confdence, witnin therr orgasisaton
abcut possible improprietes n matters of financial
reporting or other matters 1t s satisfiea tnat adeguate
arrangements are N place o alow an indepenaont

investigation, ang folow-cr acuen where necessary,
"

We gre cornmitted to acung ethicaly and witr
integrity irr all our business dealirgs and
relationskips ard to implementing and enforcing
effective systerms and controls to ensure macern
slavery 1s Net taking place anywhiere ' our Gwrl
pusiness or inany of our supply chains. consisient
wiln our obliganons unger the Modern Slavery Act
2015, We expect the sar-e kigh stanaards from &ll
of our contractars, suppliers and other cusiness
pariners As part of our Cortraciing processes, we
expect our suppliers (0 comply with the Modern
Siavery Act 2015

I L N T ot e gy
IR S R e S

The drectors are resporsible for preganng the
An-ual Repart and the fnancial staterments in
arccordance with apphcable law and reguiation.

Company law requires the direciors 1o prepare
financ.al staterrents for each financial year. Under
trat law the directors nave prepared e Group and
Company financial statements 1in accordance with
Uriated Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice {Urited Kingdorr Accounting Standards,
compnsing FRS 102 "The Finarcial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of
Ireland”, and apphcatie taw) Urder company law
the drrectors must net approve the frnancial

staternents unless they are satisfied that they give a
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true ana farr view of the state of 2fTars of tne Growp
anag Comeany and of the profit or loss of the Group

ang Comcany for that period in prepanng the

financa ssatements, the dreciors are reau'red to

o select sy tanie accooniung pol cies and then appesy

err conastently,

agle Un
Standards, comprisng FRS 102, Fave

« stawe whether apolic ved Kingdorr

Accourntng

beer followed, subject 1 any matensal cepaures
dhisc.osed ard explained in tne fnancia.

staternents;

« mMake udgements anc accourting estiraes that

are reascnable ard pradent; and

« prepare the financ al staterments on the gong
concern basis urless s nappropnate o
presume ~at the Crous and Company vl

CONTNLe 1IN Dus.ness

Tre drrectors are also responauble for safeguardirg

trie assets of the Group and Company and nence
for takurg reasonanle steos for the proventcr an
detecuon of fraud and oter rregulanties

responsibie for keeping adeguate
accounting records that a
explain the Group and Comzany's ransacticrs and

The dreclors are

are sUHicient o show ard

H

disclose wih reasonable accuracy at any time the

sition of the Group and Corrpany and
erable them 1o ensare that the francial statements
comely with tre Companies Act 2006

Tre directors are responsicle for the marterance
and integnty of the Company's webshe _ezislabon
N the Unitea Kingdorm governieg the cregaranion

and dissemmaton of firanciat staterents may d ffer

fromegislation in oth

i
-
=
L
O
@}
o
Ty
3
[G]

As cermitted by the Articies of Asseciation, the

~e benefit of an inderinity which is

directors have (

a gualifying mird-party indemaity provisic= as
defined oy section 234 of the Compar es Act 2006
The indemr iy was 10 force throughout the 135t

francial year eng s carreniy m force

rthe case of each director in officeg at the daie the
Directors’ Report s approved
+ 30 far gs the orecror s aware, there s norelevant

audiv irformation of which the Group ard

Cormpany's auditors are unaware, and

= they have taven all toe stops that they ought
to have taken 25 a director in order o make
therrselvas aware of any relovant audit
nformation and 1o establisn that the Group and
Compary's audtors are

Th s confirration 1s given ana shoult De meprates
in accordance w it the grovisions of secuon 418 of

the Cornpanies Act 2008

Trst & Young Ll E haung neen apponted 1n 2022

have indicated ©

Aeir witingn o 08 reappoliied

‘ar anicther wwrm and will be progosed for re-

apporiment it accordance with secuion 485 2° tne

Compan es Act 200

The Directors resort was e Board of

rs on 16 Decerrbar 2027 3ra s jﬁ@d Qri s

'seﬂal"‘ oy

PS Latham

rvare o that informat.cn.




Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Opinton

We rave audited the fnancial statements of Ferr
Tradimg Lirited the Parent Company'] and its
ubsidianegs {tne 'Group’) for the year enced 30
June 2022 which comprize tre Group Statenent of
Corrprehenzive Income, t~e Group and Parant
Company 3alance Sneeat, the Group Staternent of
Casn Flows, the Group and Paren: Statement of
Chamges n Fquity and the relsted notes 110 29
includirg a surnmary of sigificant accounting
poiciez. The financial reportirg frarmework that has
bean appled N ther pregaraticn 15 app.acable law
and United Xingcom Accounting Standards
ncluding FRS 102 "he Binancial Reporing
Standard anplicab.e in the UK ang Republic of
Ireland” {onited Kingdorm Generaly Accepted
Accounung Pract el

Irs our oprion, the finarca staternents

« oive 2 rue and far view ¢f the Group's and
Farent Company's afairs as at 30 June 202
nded

af the Group's preat for tha year then e

+ have been properly pregared in accordancea with
Urited Kingdomr Gereraly Accepted Accounting
Fractice; and

« Nave been prepared in accordance with: the

requiremerts o the Companias Act 2008

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with
Inernational Standards on Auditng UK (ISAs (UK)
and applicable law Cur reeponybiléties under those
standards are further descrniced in the Augitor's
responsiniltes for the audit of the financial
statements section of our repart. We are
incependent of the Grouo in accordance with the
ethical requirernents that are relevant o our audit of
the firancial statements ' the UK, including the
FRC's Erhical Standard, and we have fulfiled our
cther ethical responsicilivtes in aceordance witn
these reguirements

-~

We Delieve that the auall evidence we have
ptained ic sufiicient ard appropriate to provide a
basis for cur opirion

Conclusions relating o going concern

Irn gadirg the financial staterents, we have
concluded that the directors’ use of the going
conceorn pais of accountng in the preparation of
thie financial statements s aporopriate

Based on the work we Fave performed, we have
notidentfed any rmaterial uncertairtes relatng to
events or corditiors that, indw dually or collectively,
may cast signifcant doubt on the ch\up and Parent
a going concern

f twewve rr?om}”s from when the

ompany's aniliy 1o continueé
for a pericd o
financial staterrents are autiranised for issue,
Cur responsibilit es and the respons:h iwes of
tre drectors g CONCer
are descrbed in the relevant sections of thig

with respect to go

report However, because not all future events or

o

ord tions can be precicted. this statement s not a
guarantee as to the Group's atilty 10 conunue as a
goiNg concet

Othey information

The otner nformation comprises the information
inciuded in the annual report, other than the
financ-ai statements and cur audifer's report
trereon. The directars aze responisible for the other
information contaned within the annval report,

Cur cpirnion or the financia, statements does not
cover the other mforma::om ard, except to the

extent oherw se explicitiy stated 1 this report, we
ac nat express any form of assurance conclusion

thareon

Crar responsibility 1s to read the other information
and, in doing so, conader whether the other
inforrmation is materially nconsistent with the
hnancial staternents or our knowledge obtained in

{




31 GOVERNANCE

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Tr

tne course of the audit or otherwise appears to be
mater.atly rmisstated If we ident *y such mater al
inconsistercies or aoparent materal misstatements,
determ re whetner this g ves rise
inthe financia.
suatements themselves. if, based on e work wo
fave performred, we conciude that thore s 2

we gre reguired 1o
eral M o sstatement

materal missiaternent of the lfé informalon, we

are required o report trat fac

We have nothing to recortin this regard,
Opinions on other matiers prascribed
%;s}g the Companies Act 2008

1 OuUr SpRivion, basee on tre work urnderiaken in

e courte of the aud v

« therformation given ir the Stratea.c repor and

the Drrectors report for the ﬁwm-_ :

LyRarfor
rcial staterrents are prepared 1s
e fina~2ial staterrents, ard

« e Strategic report anc Drecors .mpof* have
beer prepared ir sotordarce with appucatle
legal regurermnenits

Maptters on which we are vequired to
raport by excsption

r the ight of the keow.edge and understanding of
the Group and 17e Parert Comgany and s
ervironment ootaned it the tourse ¢ the audid,
we have ncticerthed maternial missiatermants i

e Strategic regori o

eport

We nave notning o recort in resbect of the
foilownrg rratiers 1n relat.on (o whick the
Corrpanies ACT 2506 raguires Ll o report @ yoL

in our Of‘\( an.

ading Limited

« cedan disclosures of Drrectors remunerabon
specified by law are not rrade,
= we have not recewed all ine informeanon and

exp.arators we requirs for our aud't

f:zgmm%%& itties of directors

):*

xptaired rrore fully in the Direciors

responsibilties statement set out or pages 29 and
30 the Directors are responsitle for the preparaticn

of the financ:al starernents and for being satisfied
trat they give a true and fair v ew, ano for such
rternal control as thae "'ifectors deter*mme s
necessary to erable the preparation of fnancia:
stzramets that :re free frem meteral

msttatement, whetner due to fraud or eror

In prepanng the financial statermenis, te Directors

are responsibla for assezsing the Groua's and the

Parent Company's at'lity 1¢ continue as a gone
iy ¥

oplicable, maters re

realistic atierratve out @ 4o so.

-
¥
5
%
]
o
e
Pt

Burglitor's vesponeibililes fo
§ the financial statements

Car ohectves are 1o ool reascnakle assurance

acout whether th2 Arancia. stazemeants
are free fronr materna, msstaemen:, whetber dug

to fraug or error, ard Lo issue an auditer's rencr

t-at inc uces cur oo or. Reasenable assora—ce s
a high level c‘ assurance but.s not a guaraniee that

an audt cor ted in accordance wih 15As (UK

will 3iways deract a mater al m'sziatement when t

a
exists. Misstaternents car arse from fraod or error

and are corgicerea matena. if, ndividually o7 the

augregate. they coulo reasonably be cxpected tC
rfluence the econamic ceqisions of users takan on

tre bas.s of these fnarcal stater-enis

it
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Explanation as 1o what extent the » obtain'ng an understanding of pclicies and
audit was considerad capabile of
detecting Irregularities. including

fraved

procecures i piace regarging comphance
with laws and regulations, includ ng hoy
cempliance with such policies s montered

" . . aric orceq; optainir e ding
Irreguiarities. mcluding raua. are instarces of non- and enforces, ootainirg an understanding of

. P (.- . . SElake) ent's process fi aentivine anc
compliznce with laws and reguiat ons, We desigr Manage T.ent's process for igendly:ng anc

pregra
and conircls estanlhshed 1o address risks

identificd, o otharwisc provent, deter and

responding o fraud risks, including

m

orocedures in line witn our respensibil-tes, outli~ed
agove, to detect iregularities, includ:ng fraud. Tne
risk of not detectng a matena. misstatenent due 1o

ene A, SEMOr rranag
frauc 15 higner than the risk of not detecung one ct fraud, and how sen anagement

; , Nonitors those pr < and conrs
esulting frorn error, as fraud may invowve deiberate monitars those programs and contrels
concealmert by, ‘or example, forgery or interhona s review of beard meeting minutes i1 the pericd

presentations. cr through collusicn The

3.

and up to date of sighing.

D

xtent 1o wrich our grocedures are Cagable of ‘ )
v We gssessed the suscentibility of the Group's

financial staierents to meaterial misstatemeant,

(o

etecting rregularities, including fraud s defailed
below, —owever the primary responsiciity for the

; ‘ , incluaing row fraud might cccur by holding
prevention and detectior of fraud rests witn both =

discussian withrn the audi: feam which gr\duded:
those cnarged with governance o the erndity ard

managerent. e denuficaucn of related parties;

QOur approacn was as otlows » urcerstanding the Group's business, the
corirol envirgnmen: and assessing the inherent

We obtained an understanding of the legai and
nzk for relevart assertions at the significant

regulstory frameworks that are applicable 10 the

. o sccownt evel ‘ncuding discussions with
Croup and determined tnat the most significant - E ’

managemnent (o gain an understanding cf

re those tnat relate to reporting framework (FRS , ‘ .
thase areas of the financial statements which

102 and the Corrparees Act 2006}

=W

were susceptiple o fraud, as icentified by
« We understood how ~ern Trading Lmited i maragement; and

complying with those frarnaworks by making o
» Ccorsiderec the controls that the Group haz

enquiries of managemert, those charged with T
astapishes (o address ricks identified by

governance and those responsibie for legal )
the entity or that otnerwise seek to prevent,

and compliance procedures as to any fraud risk ) ‘
deter or detect fraud including gairing an

framework within the entity, including whether

urdersianding of the entity level controls ana
a formal fraud risk assessment s comoleted We 9 s

polic es that the Group applies

corroboraled cur enguines trcugh review of the
followirg docurmeniaton or performance of the 1« Baseo on this uncerstend ng we designed our

followirg procedures : aud @ procedures 1o identify non-corrpeance
: with sucn laws and regulaticns. Our procedures
« obtaming an understa~ding of enuty-level : ‘ . .
. : nvolved test‘ng of journal entries througn
contros and considering the influence of the ; o
sournzl analytics tools, with focus on manual

cantrol arviconment;

e HE

B HEFRBTE DT
it

i
Yw;
aswmmf‘ i1
Bl

b ihad
Sebhiy \E%
i
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

journals, large or unusual transactions, or journats
meeting our defined risk criteria based on our
understanding of the business, tested accounting
estimates for evidence of management bias;
enquiring of members of senior management
and those charged with governance regarding
their knowledge of any non-compliance

or potential non-compliance with laws and
requilations that could affect the financial
statements; and inspecting correspondence,

if any, with the relevant licensing or regulatory
authorities.

A further description of our responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements is located on the

Financial Reporting Council's website at
www frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This
description forms part of our auditor's report,

R
N 37

AR Setaaoagi e U

This report is made solely to the Company’s
members, s a body, in accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companics Act 2006. Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state

to the company's members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor’s report and
for no other purpose. To the fuilest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company
and the company’s members as a body, for our
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

Pl o f CLP

Michael Kidd (Senior statutory auditor}

for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLE Statutory
Auditor

Beifast

20 December 2022
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Group profit and loss account for the year ended 30 June 2022

2022
Mote £000

AR LD SR huT T 2 THORITIOL WO L 0SS ST TR ST o s et B e 36 R kB ek Rt 1€ 2R L b h s Rt

{restated)
2021

£000

Turnover 1 711,830

Costofsaes e {(410,883)

Gross proﬁt 7 300,947

Administratve expenses ~ {258,251)

ro G

42,696
Uither mcome 1 ‘ 3,550

Operatlng profit/(loss)

ncome from other fixed assel invesimants 5,249
share of cperating proftir oint verture -

Probt on disposat of subsic anies and Jcint venture & 29,533
Cther irterest racovabie and smilar income 3] 130

ntPer pﬂ\d.ﬂ ar d Sl C harf o5 & {33,554)

Proﬁtl {loss) before taxatlon 7 47,604

|ax a1 prof t/( 5 ! {16,294)
Proﬁtllloss) for the ﬁnancml year 31,310

Attributable to Fern 37,932

Minority interest (6,622

b

425,302

(221 ?77]

204 2‘:

(231,844)

(2/.819)
9,454
449
1,755
28568
597
26,067)
(22.663)
8,349
(F1012)

{27.005)
{4,007

(31012}

Ail resuts relate o conunuing activities Note 26 details the prior pencd adjustments.

Group statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 20 June 2022

2022
£000

g v g

{restated)
2021

£0C0

Prol"ltl(loss) or the nanualyear T 31,‘310”“

Other comprehensive income
Movemeants 1ir casn fiow hedgas 77,985

Foragn exchiarge gari/llossi on retranslation of subsidanes 18 561

96546 o

Other comprehenswe income for the : year

Total comprehensive income for the year 127 856

Attributable to
*» Owners of the parent 134,478
* Non-controiling interests {6,622)

e xpopuERng

o)

44,983
(333)
44650
12,638

17645
(4.007)

127,856

13638
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Group balance sheetl as at 30 June Z022

{rostated)
2022 2021

Naote £000 . EO00

le;dassets ////// v S e ke nree £ ek e o o A D S s 05 5 e
Irtangible assets 5 557,708 576,739
Tangible assets G 1,893,430 1.581.682
Irvestments 0 35,452 11,000

7777777777777 2,486,590 2,169; 22

Current assets
StOCks 2 184,475 54,711

Deabtors tncluding EL38m (2022 £16 Ty 13 623,161 598,602
clue after rrore than one year]

Cash at nank a~d - Fand 11 256, 415 17/ 478 i
oV e R e ,,,W..u......1064 055 .o 865 L91 . 1
Credltors amounts fallmg due wmun oneyear - A (256 152) o (202 O ;
Net currentassets ----------- e 807903 . 6?3 13z
Total assets less current l:ab(lmes - i S 3,294 493 '? 832, 553
Creditors: amounts falllng due after more than oneyear o (992 425) - {933,359)7 7
Provisions for liabilites - C@28200 4L
Net assets S o o 2 219,448 o 1 88784d
Capital and reserves
Called Lo share capital 18 161,662 149,676
Share grermiam accaunt 364,882 173,148 2
Margar resone 1,635,569 1440257 ‘
Cash flow hedge resere 63,006 (14,279) ‘
£ (2,770) 136,049
r!'otai sharehoide»;;:fﬁﬁ-é;- U T o 2,&2,34‘9‘ o 1884, 121
—comroll rg FLE’PC s (2 901) 3. 721
T o -2 219 448 1887842
Mote 26 detalls (-2 pricr peniod adjustments
Trese consoldateg Francia. statements or pages 25 w© 9¢ were aoproved by the Boarc of directors on
1€ Decerper 2022 ard are signed o~ tner behalf oy

PS Latham
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Company boalance sheet as 3% 30 June 20232

2021
£00G

S 0 R R i

TR £ G O R AT E SR T KRG BT DN AR B AR AR LT ARG GH ARG S Aos ho o e s s ¢ D0 L T B ERE b

Fixed assets
2,539,978 2,116,366
2,539,978 2118.366

Currentassets

Sebtors 12 35,888 50,387
Casti gt bark anic in nangd 1 6,422 1523
Creditors: amounts falling due withinoneyear 14 aae) @roo4)

45,861

Total assets less current liabilities

28982
45,348
145,

Net current assets
2,585,839
Net assets 2,585,839

Capital and reserves

[

o
i

48

(SRR
w
(W)

Caled up share capitat 1 161,662 149,676
Share prermiurm accourt 364,882 173118
Merger reserve 1,986,457 1,791,145
72,838 31,409
Total sharehotders’ funds 2,585,839 2145348

"

Proft ard Ioss account

The Company has elected (o take tne exermption under section 408 of the Comparies Act 2006 not 1o
present the Company profit and loss accourt. Tne proft for the finarcal penicd dealt wath in tae financial
statements of the Compary was £236,742 000 {2021 loss of £157504,0650}

These financia stalements on pages 35 1o 92 were approved oy the Poard of arrectors on 26 December 2022
and are signed on ther behalf by.

PS Latham
Director
Regstered number 12601636
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Group statement of changses in egulty for the vear ended 30 June 2022

Called up Share Merger Cash flow Profit Total Non- Capital
share premium reserve hedge and loss share- controlling employed
capital account reserve account holders’ interest (restated)
{restated) {restated] funds
{restated)
o £000 £000 £'000 E'000 £'000 £000 E£'000 £000
Galance asar h st Az o ,Er B e ) - o PR
SO < 138435 - 1635562 163837 {41,185) 1668382 G570 1,678,552
e eren - - 3,575 13,828 17703 - 17703
- 1655559 (59,962} (27 356} 1686685 8570 1,696,255
- - - 127.005] (27,005 14.007) 171012}
- ~ 44983 - 44,985 - 44983
red;es i
- - - (323 (323) - (333}
- - - 44,983 (343 44,650 - 44,650
thes year ires
Toaten oo
SRG for The - - 44 357 [27.338) 17645 4,007 12628
restares)
o marrolng
rest ansirg o - - - - 1851 1831 [1.842) 1
BLgires
- - 195 312) - 195,317 - - -
11655 173118 - - - 184,803 - 184,803
Shias carcelieg o - T T i T
- - _ - 134 _
e e sar [444) (6,239 (6,843) 16,843)
149676 17311% 1440,257 14.979} 135,645 1884121 3721 1887842
Balance as at
1 July 2021 {restated) 149,676 173,118 1,440,257 (14,979) 136,049 1884,121 3,721 1,887,842
Profit for the
financial year - - - - 37,932 37,932 (6,622) 34,310
Changes in market
value of cash flow - - - 77,985 - 77,985 — 77,985
hedges
Foreign exchange
loss on retranslation - - - - 18,561 18,561 - 18,561

of subsidiaries

1
|
i
H
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Called up Share Merger Cash flow Profit Total Non- Capital
share premium reserve hedge and loss share- controlling employed
capital account reserve account holders’ interest
funds

£'000 E'000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000 E'000
Other .
comprehensive - - - 77,985 18,561 96,546 - 96,546
income/(expense) for
theyear
Total comprehensive
income/(expense) for - - - 77,985 56,493 134,478 {6,622) 127,856
the year
Utilisation of merger - - 195312 - ues32) - - -
reserve
Shares issued during 11,986 191,764 - - - 203750 -~ 203,750
the year
Balance as at ;
20 June 2022 161,662 364,882 1,635,569 63,008 (2,770) 2,222,349 {2,901} 2,219,448

Note 26 details the prnior penod adiustments

Company stalement of changes in sguity for the year ended 30 June 2022

Called Share Merger Profit Total

up share premium reserves and loss shareholders’

capitat account account funds

e £000 £000 £'000 £000 £'00¢

Balance atincorporaton - - - - -
Loss for the finarcial year - - - CasTsea (575041

Utilisaticn of merger reserve - - (195,312} 195,512 -
Total comprehense income - - Cues32 37808 157504

Shares issued during the year 150,120 173,118 1,986,457 - 2. 309,695

Shares cancelled dunng the year (244} - - (H.395] 15,843}
Balance as at 30 June 2021 149676 173118 1791145 31,409 2145348

Profit for the financial year - - - 236,741 236,741

Utilisation of merger reserve - - 195,312 (195,312) -
Total comprehensive income T - - 195,512 MM;!.A-ZSVWW ) 236,741 7

Shares issued during the year 11,986 191,764 - - 203,750

Shares cancelled during the year - - - - -
Balance as at 30 June 2022 " Tisn662  3eassz 1986457 72838 2585839




Group statement of cash flows for the vear ended 30 June 2022

g L O R RO R e s KX £ axes A1 a o FT 0 mTereve

Cash ﬂows from operatmg actwut:es

Moke

2022
£000

B N

Profit/ioss) ‘or tre fnancial year atnbutable 1o the owners of 37,932
Adjustments for:
Tax o prof/ioss) 7 16,294
Intercst recewable ard sir far imcome 6 {130}
lrierest payalye and other similar <harges 5 33,554
Frofit o disnosal of subsidiar es and  ¢in venure B (29,532)
Incorre from oint venture -
Irzemre from fisod assct Invesiments (5,249)
Armorasation and rmoarment of mtangible fixvod as g 45,762
Cieprezanon of ngiu's fuod gssels a 101,802
Mor-cash smaff Costs 3,040
Movements or gecvatives and fore g~ cxchange (18,044}
Ircrease n stock {19,829}
{ncreasel/cecreasse (1 debtors 31,022
Increase/decreasa) v orodinors {173,956}
Mon-controthng irterests 19 (6,622}
aid} 25853
Net cash generate-d from operatmg activmes 41 897
Cash flows from |nvest|ng activities 7
Purchase of subsidiary undertakngs (net of cazin scquiradt {52,377}
Sale of sunsidiary uncertakings and joint verture 101,778
targibie assets (322,446)
PLrc-ase of intsngble assets (7.222)
FLronase of unasted nvestments {124,203)
Sale of unbsied nvestrments 12 105,000
Irterest rcavan [ 130
Toome frorm ,oint venture -
Net cash used in mvestlng actnntles (£§9,340) -
Cash flows from financing activities S
Proceeds from financing 201,719
Interest pad (32,319}
Repayments of Frarong {32,013)
Froceeds from sbare Ssue 5 203,750
\,a” JUH nof shares .8 -
Net cash generated from hnancmg actnnt:es 341 137
Net (decrease)lmcrease in casnl-'luand cash equivalents 83 694 V
Cash and casn eguvalenis at the beginring o (ne year l 172,478
Exohangs gams on Cash and cash o ule' 243 777777
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year W 256,415 o

{restated)
2021
£ L,OO

[

(27,0035}

8,349
1G97:
36068
{28,568
{1.755)
[449)
37704
84,657
8375
119,728
(5701
249,374
£€,87%
{4,007)
(1,751)

»341'917

(221,587)
345035
(110,457)
875)
(29617
20,133
597
1,077

(306 22"}’““&

(35,552;
{212,676}
184,359

{6,399)
10,268
(34577)

206,688

367
172,478

cre 26 detals the pr or period

adjustrmenrts,




Statement of accounting policies

Company information

Fern Trading Limited (the Company’) g a private compary lrmted by snares ana incorporated on 14 May
2020 Tae cornpany 1s corniciled m Englana, the United ng@om and registered under company number
12501636 The address of the registered office 1s at 6tk Floor, 83 Halborn, Lendan, England, ECLN 2HT

Statemeant of complance

The Group and indwidual francia: statements of Fera Trading Limited have been prepared in complance
w in United Kirgdom Accourt'ng Standards, nclud rg Financal Reporting Stanaard 102, "The Finanaal
Repocrung Stanaard applicable in the United Kingdorn and the Ropublic of freland (TRS 1027 ang the
Companmes Act 2606

Basis of preparation of Anancial statements

The firanc.al staterrenis have teen prepared on a going corcern basis, unaer the histoncal cost convention,
fair vatue, a~d in
hea United Kingdom Tre

pr:nC pal accountng ool ces, which hiave peen applied consistently througrout the year, are set our below.

as modified by e recognition of certan Ararcial assets and habilties measurad at

accordance with e Companes Act 2006 anc applcable account.rg siandards n

The consolidated financial statements inciude the resulis of al stbhaidianes owned by Farn Trading Limitea
as listed in note 29 of the anrual inancial staterents Certan companies of these subsidianes, which are
listed in note 29, have teken the exemption from an audit for the year ended 30 Jurne 2022 parrmittad by
section 475A of Comparnies Act 2006 In order 10 aliow these subsidianes to take the audit exemptior, the
parert company has given a statutory guarantee, in line with secton 472C of Companies Act 2004, of all
the cutstandirg net lahitties az at 38 June 2022,

Going concern

The Groun's and the Company's business activities, together with the ‘actors likely to affectts future

deveicpment, performance and position are set out tne Sirategic Report on pages 4 to 14, The financial
ositior: of tre Group, its cash flows, liguidity poswt,on ard borrowing facilities are described in the financia.

reviewys on pages 23 o 27 Tha principal r sks of the Group are se2 oul on pages 1610 15

The Directers perferm an annua. going concern review that cons'ders the Groug's ability to meet its
firarcial o |gat\o as they fal due, for a peroa of at least twelve monns afer tne date that the financial
statements have peen signed,

Due 13 the chalenging marker condition: maragement have perfermed an assessment to determine

whether there are any mMaterial unce@aindies aris-ng that could cast significant acubt on the anility of the
Group to continue as a going concern. Na significant issues have been noted and as a conseqguence, the

directors beleve that tne Group is well placed tc manage its business nisks surcessfully despite the current
uncertain econcmic outlook
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Statement of accounting policies

Iry reaching this conclus'on the Directors mave reviewed tne fnandal impact of the urcarany on the
Group's baarce sneet, profit ard wcss and ¢ash fiows with sr,ec\ﬁ: consicerzt or given Lo the following
A reverse stress ettt was performed on the base case forecast 10 ascertar what ccenarics would result n

risks to the Groups liguidity pos.ton Tre test s

(/'

howed aven i an unikey scerano of § 21gn fFcant reducton
of revenue of 46%, the Group i< aole to sustain 1ts carrent operations! costs ard meet all lab

es as hey fail

o

due for at least a year from the date of signing these frizncial statements when utlisirg the available

cidties within tine Group

Tre Group has a number of inancing facilides trat contain covenants requir ng the Group to mainta
specified financial ratics and comply with certain otrer inancial covenanis. Tnese Snanaial covenarts are
tested at lgast quarte rly, and, at tne date of tris regort, the Group ¢ ir compliarce wath 2l 1ts financial

covenanrts Stre tesis on reasonaby plausible scznanos sucn as a sigrificant reauction :n EBITDA of 84%
over trme have peer used o aises: the covenart regquirements for the at leas: the next twelve months ard

all covenanis nave heen forecast to e met even urder the stress es

enario, in e GoINg concarm perod
t 30 June 2022, the SGroup haa avalacle
Cfaciaty of £210m Deptof =

of £952m payable in more than cre year
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revolying <re ure i IFa) han one year with the remain d

repayreent gates and undrawn armounts are
=t out N Note 16 Loans and 2Borrowings.

Key acrounting judgement and estirates have been made with consideral’ on given 1o the curent

ECONOMIC CuLoGk Key estimates include oan recoverabslity, valuation of work n progress,

gecommissioning orovisions, mparment of goodwill and Irvestreens, Lasiness comoinations ard herdge
accounting. Details are set out on pagoes 50 o 51

Based on the above assessment of current economic conait ors anc the »mpact on tre Grogp's finangial

pes Lon, aguidity ar d fnancizl covenarts, the directors nave concuced that he Grown and Company has
adeguate rescurces to contnue ir coerational ex stence for the next 12 months Thus, they cortinue o
adopt the gong concern basiz of accczqnta‘ng ir prepanrg the annuat 97anciz. statements

Exemptions for gualifying entitiss undey FRS 102

FRS 102 alows a quakfying entiy certair disc.osore exempiions. subject 1o ceran condions, which have
beer compaed wih, noudirg notifcaton ©
shareholders.

and no obection to, ne use of exemptions by the Company’s

The Ccrrpany nas aken advartage of the ollowing exemplons
from prepar ng a statemert of cask flows, or the £as s that T 3 guanfy ng ertity 2=d tre corclidate
swatement of —ash fiows—, ircluded nthese finarc al siatemants, inciuded the Compary's cash Aows,

i fro the francial instrument aisclosures, reqa red uader FRS 102 paragrapts 11 3% to 11484 ana

saragraphis 12 26 10 12 29, as tne ‘nformat on s orovided n e conscloaied inanc gl staterrent

disclesores

i, from ciscios ng the Comeany key managemant periorne! compensation, as requred oy FRZ 102

caragraph 33 7.

gl

Bt
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Statement of accounting policies

Basizs of consclidation

The corscidated hnancial statements include the lts of Fern Tradmg Limited and all its subsidiary
underakings made up o the same accounting date All irtra-group talances, transactions, imcome and
expenses arz elm nated 1 full on consolidation. The resuits of subsidiary undertakings ch| ed or dispased
of dunrg the pericd are included or excluded frem the income staterrent from the effective date of
acquisition or disposal

All urdertzkings over which the Group exercises control, bemng the power 1o govern the franciat and
oerating policies so as to obtain benefits from their acivities, are consc.dated as subs-diary underta<ings
Wher@ a subsidiary has different accounting pohc es to the Group, adjustrrents are made to Fose
"

suheidary firancial staterments to apply the Group's account ng policies when greparing the consolidated
3 by o g

finarcial statements

Ary subsid-ary undaerta< ngs or associates sold or acquired durmg the year are included up . or from, the
dates of change of control or chiange of signifcant influence respecuvely

Where the Groun bas written a put cotion over shares nield by a nor-con r';‘umg irtarest, ine Group
derecogrises the non-controlling interest ang instead recegn sed contingent deferred corsideration habity
within other payanies for tre esumated amount Lkely to be pad to the non-controlling ~terest on exarc'se
of those options. The residual amount, representing the difference between ary consideration pard/oayan
and the non-cortralng interest’s share of net aisets, 1 recognised as gqoodwill Mcevementsin the
esurmated liabiity after nibia: recogniuen ara recognised as goodwill

Forelgn curranay

i. Functional and presentation currency
The Group financial statemerts are presented in pound sterling and roundead to thousands.

The Company's funciional and presentat'on currency is pounc sterling and rounded o thousands.

ii. Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are transiated into the functional currency Jsing the soct exchange rates at
the dates of t1e transactions At each period end foreign currency maonetary itemns are translated using the
closirg rate Nor-moretary items measured at historical cost are transtated using the excharge rate at the
date of the transaction and non-monetary Items measured at *ar vaiue are measured using the exchange
rate when fair value was determined. Foreign exchange gains and lczses resulting from the settlerent of
transacticns and from the transiation at per.cd-end exchangs rates os‘ maonetary assets and tabilites
denominated in fereign currencies are recogrised in the profit and ioss account.

All fore gn exchange ga:ns and iosses are presented n the profit and loss socount within ‘adminisrative
EXCENSes’

iii. Translation

The trad'rg results of Group undertekings are ransiate
for the year. The assets and liabilities of overseas undertakings, including goodwilt and fair value adjustments
arsing on acquizition, are translated at the excnange rates ruling at the year-end Excnange adustments

irto pounds steriing at the average exchange rates

arsing from the retransiation of opening net iInvestmenis and from the translation of the profits or (os5es
at average rawes are recognised in "Other comprehensive income’ and allozated o non-controling interest
as appropriate,

e
Fadael s?n;w;zﬁ
T e
e,
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Statement of accounting policies

Turnover
Tre Group cperates a number of Classes of pusiness Revenue is gerved by the folowing:

« brergy
Turncover fforw erierated by solar farms, wind generaung assets, reserve power
piants and o

generaed R

SCOgnIses N an accrua.s basisin the perad in which it s

e rrnent backes offtake ag

e gocrued it the pariod nwhicn it reletes to Turnover from the

‘\
5
Pt
%]
a
B
o
=
]
s
0
[
tn
%)
or
D
M
o

Ohiigaton C
sate of feruliser by biomass and landfill businesses 1 recognised on physica: d\:pa ch

+ Hegltrcare

Turnover s recogrised when the significant nsks and re
passad to the buyer (on lega. completenl the armown: of revenue car be recognised relably, and it s

varcs oF ownershio of relirerient properties have

proabia that the econoric benegfits associated witn the transaction w l flow to tne entity Turnover

£

iz recognized a7 the tarr value of the consderation recewad for heathcare services orovides 1In the normal

course of buginess, and is shown net of VAT Tur~over ¢ recogrized basec on the date the service s

+ Lendng

Turmover represents arra~ceme ard nterest o0 lgars provided 10 customers, nat of any value

added tax Loan nierestis recogn sed on an accrual basis ‘0 ane with contraciual ierms of the can

agrearmeart Arrargement feas are spread aver fre e of the ‘Can to which thay relate

= Fiore
ideration recaived for infermer connectivity and relat
s, and 5 shaown ret ot VAT Turrover s recogmsed

Turnaver is cgisea at the ‘ar value of

'T services provided v trie normal course ¢

baczed or the date the service s provioed

+ House buidng
Turncver 15 recogrisaa on egal completior of tre sale of proserty, tara and corrmercial spaces. Turnover
from housing assccialion Contacis 12 recogrised by reference 0 the vaue of work completed as a

proocrtion of the tota. co-ract vaiue,

Emplovee benefits

The Greop crovides a range of berahis 1o employee

arrangements and defred conmmpution pension olans

i. Short-term benefits

Short- terrr benefits including nolicay pay ard cirer simular nen-moreaty berefils

vy
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exgense M ine parod nowhicn Ire service § rece ves
i. Defined contribution pension plan
A defred contrbution pian s a penaor par urder wn o0 the Group pays Fxed connbutens inc a

separate ent iy Once tne contr BoUons have oeen waia the Grour nas ne further paymert ol

1

The COntIoUons 316 recognised 35 a7 expense when they are gue Amounis not paid are shown in

accruais It the balance shest The assats of the par are neid separ

m

tey frem the Groua in independently

admistered “unds.
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Statement of accounting policies

iii. Share- based payments

Casr-seitled share-bDased payments are measured st fair value 3t e balance sheeg! date The Group
recogrises a liability af the balance sheet date basec on thesa fair values, taking Intc accourt the esumated
rumber of unts that will actualy vest and the current prosortion of the vesting pericd

Changes ir thie value of thus liabilty are recognised in the ncome statement
The Group has no eguity-settleq arrangements.
Finance cosis
Finarce costs are charged © the profit and «0ss account aver the term ¢f the debt using tne effeciive
ta consiant rate on the carry:ng amodnt |szue costs are

initizlly recogrised as a reduction in the proceeds of the as:aor:\ated captal instrument and reieased to the
profit and loss account cver the term of the debt

interest metacd so that the amount charged s a

Current and deferred tax

Tax is recognised .n tae stater-ent of ncorne and retai-ed earings, except trat & change atitbutable o an
item of .ncomre and expense recojnised as otrer comprehensive iIncome or to an sem recegnised directly

N equity s a-so recogaised in other comprehens ve inccime o directly n eguity respectvely

The current income tax charge is caiculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have peer enacted or
substantvely enactec by tne balance sheet date Ir the countrics where the Comoany operaies and
gersraes income,

Defarred balances are recagnisad in respect of all uming differances that nave origirated but not reversed

Ly tne Balance sheet date, excep: that:

« The recognition of deferred tax assets i limited i the extent that it is probable that they wil be recovered
aqainst the reversal of deferred tax labilities or other future taxable profits, and

« Any deferred tax balances are reversed if and when all conditions for retaining asscciated tax altowances
agve been met

Ceferred tax bzalances are not recognised in respect of permanent differences excest n respact of Dusiness
combinations. when deferred tax is recognised or rhe differences between the farr vawes of assets acquired
and the future tax deduciicns availacle for them and the differerces betweaen the fair values of dabilities
acguired and the amount that w ll be assessec for tax, Deferred tax -5 determined using tax rates and laws
that have been enacted or suostanfively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Business combinations and goodwill
Business corbinaticns are accountad for by applying the purchase method.

The cost ¢f a business compination is the far value of the cansideration given, laonties \ncurred or
assumed and the equity instruments 1ssued plus the costs directly attnbutanle to the business combination

Where contrel s achieved in stages the cost is the consideration at the date of eacn transaction,

On acquisitior of a business, far values are attributed to the identifiable assets, liagilines ard cont:ngent

labilities uniess the fair value cannot ne messured relizbly, in which case the value is incorporated as
goodwill. Whare the fair vaiue of contingent liab:lities canrot be reliably measured they are disclosed
oni the same bas:s as otrier contingent liak:litics,
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Goodw | reccgnized representc the excess of tre farr vaiug and directly attiributatle costs of the purchase
e ret assets, Labilities and

consideration over the fair vaiuas to the Group's interest in the dentifia
contmgent laoilives acquired

On acquiztion, goodwin s atocated 10 cash-generatng un'ts (CGU'S) that are excected 1© benefit from
the comoiratior.

Goadwaell 1s amortised over its expected ysef whiich 1s determined based e estimated Wifespan of

the assets acquired Wnere the Growp is unable to make a reliable estimate of

armort

sed over a penod not excesd Ng ten years. Sooawill s reviewed and assessed for mgarment
irdicators o= an arnuat basis and any 'mparrment s charged 1o the profit and loss

Tangible fead asselty

Targible fixed assets 3

-} at cost less deorecaton Depreciaton 1s provides a8t rates Calcuates to write

off fhe cost of fixed & a5 ther estmated rasiduat value, over their expected use’u! ives. Depraciatorn
fate ar asset s oroLght intg service tand and azsets in the course of constryction

satad, The est matea usafui !

5 are as ‘olows

in “he course of construchion are stated at ¢ost. “hese assets are ~oi decrediated untii they are

Whare faciors, such as technologcal 2dvancerent or cranges in markct price indicate that resdual value

or useful life rave cnanged, (e resiqual value, useiul ife or depreciation rate are amended Chively to
reflact the ~ew crcLmstarces The assets are reviswed for imparmert f the above faciors ndicate that the
carrying amourt may be mpaired

osals 27e deterrmimed by companng the oroceeds wiln oo

car.ry‘mg amcuncagrc ars

ed gt cost less accumuiaren amortisat on and accuruiated mMpa2immient (05ies.

fed. vzing tre siraight-ine metqcc, o allocate sra deprecianie smourt of the asse's
-

o Trelrr residual values over their eztmated Leful Lves, as folows

Arortsat.on expenses arg inciuded in adrmenisirabve EX0OErSES.

Sevelopment rghts relate (o plannng corse~t 1 outd a solar farme and & w nd farm acaared on acquisinoen
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Where factors, such as changes in market price, indicate that res'dual vatue or usefu! life nave changed, the
residual valug, vseful ife or arrortisation rate are amended prospectively o reflect the new circumstances.

The assets are rev ewed for impairmeant of the aoove factors rdicate that the carrying amoun rmay
e IMpares

Lesses

SE5SMent CoNsigers

Atirncept or the Group assesses aegreements that ransfer the rght Lo use asses as
whether the arrangement is. or contains, a lease based o0 the subsiance of tne arrangement and whether
the weaze snolic be classified 25 either 2 finance lease or an operating lease

Leases of asseis that rarcfer substarntially all the rsks ang rewards incidental o ownersh.p are classifed as
finance ieases, finance leases are cagitalised at the commencement of the lease at the fair value e

(Dc

lagsed asserl and depreciated over the shorter of the [zase term and the esimated useful life of the asset

Assets gre asgassed for impairment at each reporting date.

—

2ases that do not transfer al the risxs and rewards of owrersain are ¢lassifies as operaung leases

3

3
yrnents dnder cperaurg leeses are charged 1o the profit anc i0ss account on a siraight-ine basis over e

o

3
period of the e

Investments

The Company Folds inveztents i a subsidiary at cost less accurrulated imparrrrent losses If an
iMpairment loss s sucsequertly reversed, the carrying amount of the irvestiment s increased ‘o the revised
estimate of .ts recoverable amount, but only W0 the exient that the revised carryirg amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that wodld rave been determined had no impairmenrt (oss been recogn sed in prior
oeriods, A reversal of an impairmenst loss s recognised in the profit ard loss account

Cash

Casm includes cash in hand and deposits repayabie o1 dernand Restricied cash represerts cash for which
the Group does not have Immediate and direct access or for whch reguiztory or legal reguirements restrict
the use of the Cash

Stocks

Raw rratenals, spare parts and consumables are valued at the tower of cost and et realisable va ue Where
riecessary. a provision s made for obsolete, slow-maoving and defective stock Costis determined on the
first-"n, first-out (FIFO} metnoo

Fuel stocks (MBM and litter] are valued on an average cost basis over one to twao rmanths and prowvision for

unusakie Litter 1s reviewea monthly and appied (o off-site stock,

Fuel stock of straw has beer valued at the historical cost per torne of straw. A provision for unusable straw
s identifed on an individual stack basis and 1s reviewed monthly Stocks are used an a first in, fiirst cut

( FIFQ bas's 'Dy age of straw
Stocks of ash at Fibrophos are valued at the lower of cost and net realsable value to the Groun.

Stocks of property development work in progress "WIP') are stated at the lower of cost and net realsaple
valle Cost comprises direct matenals and, where applicable, direct labour coste and those overheads trat
have been incurred in bring:ng the stocks to ther present locations and condition
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At each reporting d

z,

an assessment 1€ made for imparment Any excess of the carving arrourt of
stocks over its estmated seiling price less costs to complete and seltis recognisen as an inrpairent loss

through the profit and ioss sccount Reversals of impairmert (osses: are also recogrisec in the proft arg

l&oss account

Aeoorued income

Accrued ~come on loans 3 latea at tne rate of mterest set oLt in Eriergy incorre

accrued over the pernoc N wch 1t nas beer gererated,

Detarred income

Ceferred income is recogrised :n accordance witn the terms sef ocut in the centact Deferred incormea s

relegsed to the profit and loss account in the penod o wrich it relates,

Financial instruments

Tre Group na 12 o FRS 102 N re Chrancial msteumrens

chosen o adopt Sectaons 1 a

Basic fnanaal atsets, inclodng frade and otner -eceivabies ard cash ard bank va.ances are intally
recogrised at transaction proe, unlass Tre arrangement const futes & Anancing transaction, where the

transacior s measured at the present vaiue of tne future receints discounted at 2 markest rate of Inwerest

Such asserts are subsequently caried at amrortised Cost LaIng tne eectve interest metnod

At the end of each reporting pencd fnancial a

5 measured at armortised Cost are assessed for ob ective

evidence of impa rment If a7 aisel s impared the imcairment 1055 15 the differer ctwesn the Carryng

amount and the present vaiue of the estmatca cask flows ciscounted at the nginat effectve interest

rate. Troe imparment loss s recognised in profit or loss

Cther francia: 23328, inciuaimng nvectments in enu ty snctrumeants whicn are ~or subsidianes, associates or
Qu Y

joirtvertures, are mially measured at farr value, whicr is normaly e ransaction prce Such assets are

subseauently carred at far vaue and the changes in fair vaile are recogn sed in profit or [0ss, excect that
ol

Investments in eguity Instruraents that are not publicly ragsd and whose far values cannot be measarea

relizbly are mezsured at cost less imparrient

Francal assels are gerecogrised when {a) the conraciual ngnis 12 the cash flows from the asset expors ar
are settled, or by substantialiy al. the riske and rewards of the awnershp of the astel are rars’arred to

another part\ o {c) contro, of the ass

e~ transferred to anciner party wno nas the oractical abdity

o urlateraly sell the astet w an urrewmed trird party without impes ng adaitona, restrichions

Natattine fiale

il

low Grous comparies

re imtla\ty recogmeed at transacron once, urless the grrancertent consutue: &
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et nstrumernss are subsequerntly caried at amortised cost, using the effect ve interest rate method. Fees
pald on the establishment of «oan facilities are recogmsed as transact on costs of the loan to (ne extent that
'Lis prebable that some or all of the facility w ll be drawn down In th's case, the fee s defered until tre

draw-down occurs To the extent thera is 1o ev'dence that it is prokable that some or all of the facility wil:
e drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a ore-payment for liquidity services and amortised over the perioa
of the faclity to which it relates,

Trade payables are ob.igathons tC pay for goods or services that have peen acguired in the ordinary course
of business from supoliers Accounts payable are classified as current labilties i payment 15 dug within one
year or less. If not, thoy are preserted as non-current baoilites, Trace payables are recegnsed intally at
tranzachion price and subssguently reasured at amortised cost using the effective interest methad.

rinancial izbit ties are derecogn.ced when the hability 15 extimguised, that is when the contraciual cblgation
15 discharged, cancelisd or exgires.

Frovisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that g'ves the Group a legal or constructve obugaicn
that prooably requires settdemeant by a transfer of economic beneff, and a rel'abie estimate can be made of
the arrouwnt of tne abligation

Provis ons are charged a expense to the profit and loss accourt in the year that the Group pecornes

san
aware of tre oblgation, and are measured at the best estmate at the Dalamce sheet date of the expenditure
'

required to settle the gb.gation, taking Nto accournt relevant risks and uncertanties.

Hedging

The Group zpplies hedge accounting for tranzactions entered nto (¢ manage the cash fow exposures of
borrowings. interest rate swaps are neld to manage the interest rate exposures and are designated as cash
fiow hedges of floating rate borrcwings Charges i the fair values of denvatives designated as cash flow
hedges, and wnich are effective, are recognised directly in eguity. Ary ireffectiveness in the hedg ng
relzticnsh p {oeing the excess of the cunrwative change in fair value of tne hedang instrument since
ncept'on of the hecge over the cumutative change in the failr value of the hedged em since nception of
the hedgel 15 recogrized 11 the profit and loss

The gain or lass recogrised in other comprehensive income 1s reclassified to the profit and ioss in
accordance with the cash fiows of the hegged item. Hadge accounting 1s dscontinued wren the hedging
nstrument exoires, ~o lorger meets the Fedging crteria, the forecast transact on s no lorger highly
orotable, the nedged debt instrument 1s derecognised or the hedging instrument 15 terrminatea

Share caplial

Ordinary shares issued by tne Groug are recognised in equity at the value of the proceeds rece ved, with the
excess over nominal value being credted to snare premum

Mon-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests are measured at their proportionate share of the acauiree’s identifiable net assets
at the date of acquisition.

renn i e
“,m sty i ’*m
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Hoy accounting udgements and estimates

e preparancn of financial statermients 1 compliance with =R¢
accourting estrrates 11 alzo reguires management to exercise Judgermrentir applyng e Company's
aCcountng polces Tstmates and judgements are conitl y evaiuaied ano are
expernence ang oings factors, rouang excectations of future evenis that a'c beleved U
under the crourstarces. Tne key estimates and judgements in prepanng these ﬁr‘ar‘ma! slatermenrts are,

i. Recoverability of loans and advances to customers {estimate)
Loans and advances to ustiomeaers, i umng associated accrues income balarces, are reviewsd for

Imparment on a quarterly vasis. In considerirg fre need for 3 Drovsicn. Managemeanrt getermine their gest
estmate of the expecied futura cash fows on a case by case 03315, A: thig aztimate reags or g certar
number of assumipt ons about futlre everts which rray aiffer from actuzl outcomes, mcluding the

jo}
L
v
)

rower’s ability 1o repay intarest and capital aue i future :;er!ods this gives rise to Judgement as o
whether there is 3 ro-ifal betwesn the carrying value and the far vaue of tre debtor balance

Managemen: note that orov 21ons aganst loan: ara advanioes i and ~ave tharccre
performed sens tivity analyss on the provisior “he reaults of the sensih ~alyis conclude that a change
of +/- one per cent ir the armount provided agairst the estimated haiance at risk wouls Fave resutfes in
E3om iess/more evnerditure peing chargea to the ncome statement cunng the panad, See noe 13 for the

s

carrying amourt of fre debtcrs and provisicns at 30 cune 2022

ii. Value of property development work in progress (WIP’} (estimate)
Property development WIE is reviewad for mpairment on a per odic nasis In consdering the reed for &

Provision, Mmaragemean: dotermire thar best estimane of the recoverable value Management engage an
expert externa. valuer 1o provice Key assumctions eboJdr fuiure everts wnic™ rmay differ from actual
SUtComes, inouaing procorty valuaions, rae of sa\e ard deve Oorment CoErs

‘hese est mates give nse o judgement as tc wnethar there is & shortfal. between the carrying valug and the
far vaiue of the balance as 2t the 30 June 2022 Post year end, maragement have reviewed the
seve oomrent WIF and nave chierved no changes in

assumipt ors used W cetermine the value of property
performance that waous Impact the valuat or as ar the 20 June 2022 See rote L2 for the carrying amourt

of the property develo;smeﬁ WP

i. Purchase price agreement {Australian entities) {judgement)
ne Group owns two energy gereratirg subad.aries 0 Australia whic™ have ersered irto purchase prce

agresments (PPAS) 1~ 2019 and 2021, The FPAS inciude a contract for aifferences 'CID" whereby the

SUGSICIENES pav/re’:e

amaounts from the customes basea on tne differences oetween a fired celling crice

8]

ric;ty S-:;ld o the Austral'ar energy Tarket The airectors celieve Tne contractis

sectior 12 as tis for tre sale ¢f 3 non-fnancial tem ard the C°0 s tynmicat for

\
1]
<
B
3
Ly
-
Q
]
o
5
)l
y

iv. Business combinations {(estimate)
Tre cost of 2 o
gt

sness combinaticn sike far value of e considerater gver, laoillies i~curred olus the

1
trbbutacle to the busress com

=

sty directy aton. Fair value of these comriinat ons s a key estmate

of
and mors deta'is are provided cn pages 45 10 46
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Statement of accounting policies

v. Decommissioning provision (estimate)

The provision for decommissioning Cosis is measured at maragement's oect estimate of (ne present value
of the expenditure required to settle the future cbhgation o return land on whicn there are cperat.oral wind
and solar farms, to its eriginal conditon The level of the proviswoms 1s determined Lo a S\gmﬁcaﬂt degree by
the astimation of future disrmantling and resiaration costs, as well as tha tming of d smantlerment

Wind Farms {estimate):
Managerent note that decomrmis

SI0NING Crovisic s 15 a critical esumaie and have therefore performed
ersitivity anatysis. Tne results of the sensitiv.ty armtys s conclude that a charge of +/- ane per cent in the
discount rate wouid have resubicd in £2 Ire wr Ses et 17 for the provis.on

eane it e prov:
recognised at 30 June 20772, Management uﬂlise ‘-“(Lr‘rﬂﬁ[ expertise o provide ar estimated cost 1

dismantle and have used a discount rate of 2% to reflect the tme in value of money and the ns<e specihc
tc the cbligaton.

Australian solar farms (judgement):

The Group is required o restore the eased premeses of the solar farm to their onginat conaiton at the end

of the .easea tarm. A provision was previcdsty recognized, nowever in tne currert year *his judgement nas

peen reassessed ard management believe the lessor may wish (€ either take title of the assets for enher
continued use or to realse value through selling the assets and as such do not believe that ar outflow 12

prosable to settle this restoration obuagatic

)

UK Solar {estimate):

During tne year, a third party perfermed ar assessment of the bate ¢ost of the decommussicning of the
Croups UK sclar farme. The findirgs have resulted in material change in the cost estiimate and therefere a
arovis:or has been recognisec for the first time on some sites The impact has rezl,l.\,ci 7 a prov.sion berg
ra'sed for £18m o the halance sheet decornmission:ng liability ana fixed assets. As at 20 Jure 2022 there i

no -mpact on the profit and loss. Sites not aected are addressed beiow

UK and French Solar (judgment):

Marnagement believe tnat g ven e natlre of these particular assets, the [@ssor may wisn 1 eitner take Utle
of the assets for e ther cortinued use or 1o real’se value througn seling the assets and as such do no

pelieve tnat ar outflow is probable (0 sefte this restoration eblgation Management will contnue to monitor
the situat.on at each talance sheet date.

vi. Impairment of goodwill and investments {estimate)

The value of gooowill heid oy the Groun and investments in sulssidiary urdertakings neld by the Company
s reviewed annually for impairment. Tne recoveranility of these balances 1s considered with referernce to the
present value of the estimated future cask flows. Theze calculat’'ons use cash flow projections whicr exterd
forward forecast business performance togeiner with assumptions surrcunding the expecteo life of the

asset, externa:ly prepared forecasts and vauatons, ard any adjusimen:s requrred the giscount rate o take
account of business rick The estimated present value of these future cash flows is <ersitive o the discount
rate and growth rate used in the calculation all of wrich reqguire management's judgcment Testing o the
carrying vaiue has been performed cunng the year, wnich has invcived several scenarios Being modelled.
Based on this testing anc the resulting imparment recognizad on mvestments, managerment believes there
is sufficient headrcom o support the value of gooawill and investmients in sudsidiary entities,

Managerent note tnat irrparrrent of goodwill ang investments s a critical estrmate and have therefore
performed sersitvily analysis on the provicsion The results of the sensitivity analysis corciude that a charge
of +/- ore per cent in the amounrt orovided agains: the estimated baiance at rizk would have resuited 1n
£549m iess/more expenditure being charged to the income statermnent duning the period. See note 8 for
the carrying amcunt of the gocdwili and investments at 30 June 2022,
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g

Analysis of turnover by category

trergy operstions . solar, reseree power and wing

Fricrgy operations — omass and andfill
Heaithicare operations’
Home burdng

Fibre cporatars

2022
£'000
42,404
365,958
223,526
45,978
25,034
8,930
711,830

ks N

2021
£000
66552
179,820
141826
42266
4838
425,302

TESTRRN

“nciudnd i incorme from Healincare operations s L1/ 4 (2021 L12 2r) resting o 1ne sate of retirerors village dnirs,

and £28 6 (2021 L31 Tty n elat on 0 se

Analysis of turnover by geography

Eurcpe

Fest of wiord

rerderen

84,433

23,486

711830

" 584799

31,893

8,610

4253202

Other income

hhhhhhh R TS 8 %908 duad S e g gncacus

Liguicated damages snd nsurance groceeds

2022
£'000

2021
£'000

3,550

9454
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
ERSE S AN G
This 15 stated after charging/icraciting):
{restated)

2022
£000

2021
£:000

Amortisation of intangible assers (note &) 37,839
Irmipairrment of irtangible assets mote 8} 7,913
Deprecation of tangible asscts (note ) 101,802

Audizors remuneration - Compa~y and the Group's corsclidated
firiarc al statemerts

45

Auditors rermuneration — audt of Comgzany's sabs ciartes 819
Auditors’ reuneration - ron-ausit services 246
Andirars remLNSralion - TEX COMM NG Sonees 482
Differerice orloreign exchange 1,772

Cperating fease rentas 13,783

37,704

84,697
146

1,134
513
872
4402
7502

Note 26 detzis the prior penod adjustments.

E O

2022
£700

2021
£:000

e g e o s e B s o

Wages and salanes

85,432
7.081
3,233

95706

Socal secunty costs

Other gension os's

41.383
3809
1676
46868

The Grouo provides a defined contnbut.on schemes for its employees in the UK The amcunt recognised as

ar expense for the defined contrbution scheme is shown in tne tabe above
The monthly average number of persons employed by the Group during the year was:

2022

20621

) Number Nurnber
Produciion T 1,032 699
Adrnin.stration 631 348
Directors A 3 o 3

1666

The Compary nad one ermployee gther than Directors duning the periog ended 30 June 2022 (202

1. none).




4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2027

(A

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

B oo

Fraolumerts

R T RV, L T L L RTINS LSRR LU VRIENE

B

2022
£000
176

SRR AR s e & 3 L TORTY

2028
£'000
163

wmen rvmn Ry

Lurnng the year no pension cortnoutions were mada N resy

e Grouo nas no other key managernert (20210 nonel.

A number of subsidiaries of the Group cperate a cash-sethed LIP
ermMgioyees rendesr séryices
f the undariyin g su

reparn g date anc atthe s

’“sad:afy Tre far value of tra liap
5 recognisec over

ement date Tae fair valle

of experce recogn.sed takes INIo acCoun: ne Cest ava

Cash-settled share-based payment transactions with employees

QLening SLESAncng o4-3

Granted aurng H"'" oGy

Closing outstandmg balance

cxchange for cash, tne amount of wich i dete
ity for the aw

the ve

nect of the directors (2021 none;

o qusifying empioyees, wharchy

rrened ﬂ/ rafererice 1o the

vards rmaae |

slaple estimate of the number of ur
wder e service and performance conaitions underlying each award granted

2022
Number of
awards

1,763,563
3,678,314

1914781

S mMeasured at £ach
cting per od [The amcunt
T expecied fo

2021
Number of
awards

s wna ST

1 rj4ﬂ 000
2747 )1
1, 91/‘ 75¢

The total charge for the year was £3.133,000 (2021 £1.334.000) ana at e 30 Jane 20772 there was a

Lat ity of £2 407000 incuced within credsors greater t7an one year (2021 £1,352 6003

% S

Interest receivable and similar income 2022 2021
E'OOU £000

Irserest o bank batarces B 130 597

Interest payable and similar expenses 2022 2021
£'000 £ O 00

Interest om sank bf "owmgq

Anorusaton of 15548 osts Gr Dank borrowings

Froft/ lOBS Of‘ dervalve firanda ins

drrerts

32 192

2,597
{1.235)
33,554

T4z
1,103
587
36,068
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
7

a) Analysis of charge in year

2022
£000

Current tax:

LK corporation tax charge on profit/(iloss) for the year (297)
Argnstments i respect of prar perioers 3,196

(restated)
2021

Lo09

- et A A S R A S 0 R 9 R R o PR R R RN DR OB PR R RS S S VL A S T IR I AT R e Y g

Foregn tax sutterse 5,641 -
Totat current tax charge/icredit) 8,540 11,.218;
Deferred tax:

Crgination and reversal of tring differonces 6,227 2,074
Adjustmenis In respact of grior pencds (3,741) {5.958)
Effect of change in tax rates 5,268 11.491
Total deferred wax 1,754 9,567
Tax charge on profit/(loss} on ordinary activities 16,294 8.349

b} Factors affecting tax charge for the year

The tax assessad for the year s higher (2021 higher! than the standard rate of corporanen ax in the UK of
Y 3 g

19% (2021 19%) The differerces are explained be.ow:

2022
£000

frestated}
2021

£'000

ban TP T S  ET T D  F LS TR T 2T 2 P22 R

47,604

Profit/{loss) before tax
Prefit/loss) before tax multipled oy standa-d rate of

cerporation tax in the UK of 19% {2020 19%) 9.045

Efiects of

Expenses not deductib.e for tax purposes 11,723
Cther effects (868)
Incarne not taxabie for tas purposes (8,102)
Adiustrents in resnect of prior per ods {545)

SHects of change in s rates 5,041

Total tax charge for the yearr - 16,294

{4,022}

16.076
1022
(3.351)

(6,865)

11489

8,349

LETETEIS S

(211700

c) Factors that may affect future tax charge

The Finance Act 2021 enacted on 10 June 2021 ‘ncreased the main rate of UK corcoration tas from 18% to
25%, effective 1 April 2023 Deferred taxes on the balance sheet have been measured at 25% 2021 25%)

which regresents the fulure corporation tax rate that was enacied at the balance sneet date.

MNote 26 detaiis the prior period adjustments
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

g - A R

Software Goodwill Deveiopment
{restated) rights
QUOUR £o00 . ... [Fo00O . EOOO
Cost : 2 e enate s e anesose bk S5AR BT 155 At s e e e et g
At 1 Juy 2021 restateq: 964 726,602 10,216
Acguired through busimess - 30,042 4,058
compbinatinns (note Z7]
Adait'ons 2,125 - 1.040
Dispasals - (21.118) -
f:r- o J"}"Lw* | - 7930 -

At 30 June 2022

Accumulated amomsatmn

At July 2071 restated! 107 155902
Disposas - (2462)
Loss on transiaton {132)
lrripairrrent - 7513
Charge ‘or the year 12 37,514
At30June2022 119 202,475

Net book value
At 30 June 2022

At 5D Jure 2077

540 981

‘?65 700

2,970

frestated; 857

743,456

1,034

523

13 757
9 182

15314

Totat

£000

737,782
34,100

3165
(21.118)

161,043
(2,462)
1192

7913

37849

1,557

204, 151

557,708

576,733

Tre gain o tras slation of fareign currency denocrminated g
income. Arrcrtizanor of goodwil is charged o administrat o costs.

Detals of tre subsdar es acqguired auring the yvear endea 30 June 2022

Curng the year tne group disposed of 2 wna “arms ir Sinland, as a res

recogms_c g
ogritsed in the profit ar

I'e}

armaortisaton was n ke current

sale rec o3 1S francaction was £2

imeanrertof £/9rn nas teen recogrused or goodwill (2021 ~onel,

e

codwdl s recs

Wi 22,5 of ace

year and £29 3m of gocdwil was realisec o the sale Cainon

r comprehensive

can be found in note 27

2am

Mo assets have ceen pledyed as securnty for Labtities at year end 2022 norel

4{
]
®
3
O
Ri
5
1-3
2
=
Al
a
3
o}
3
)
.
o
o
\.\
’7
e}
&

[alolat=)

!

ated g

—~

Soxdwiil
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

g \ \\‘

Land and Power Plant and
buildings stations machinery
{restated)
Group £'000 £000 £'000
g - s 7 w
AT duly 2077 irestated) 8531 317467 1695437
Addtors 329 1536 73,647
- s
UERIr va Le riovernent - - 368
Transferz - 68 1,056
JIERGSa.S (12%) - 75,951
At30June2022 10,533 315,071 1745911
Ac;umula‘ed d.epre‘.:i.atior;. i [t At ou RV e
At Saly 2021 44:0 90058 414,559
Charge for the year 183 17130 81141
Dispasals - - 1182)
FX moveraert - - (776)

At 30 June 2022
Netbookvalue
At 30 June 2022
A: VSO Jane 2021 fréstatec]n

5,940
4321

211,882
227408

107,189

494,742

1,251,169
1,280,878

Netwoark
assets

S 2

27.288
604E2

118,686

1290
3348
(221

114,269
25,998

4,417

Assets under Total
construction {restated)
£000 E'000

HURDLY U £ LRI D H s bt R SR D RS BT

43,277 2,092,000
238006 374480
57663 110.315
3,294 3662
132,070) -
- {76,086)

30370 2504371
- 510,318
- 101,802
- {403
- (776]
- sw09e

310,170
43,277

1,893,430
1581682

Included within tanginte asset

Lse, The net carrying amount
{

The Company had no tangibie assets at 30 June 2027 (2071 ncne)

Note 26 details tne prior penod

s are capitalised finance costs directly attributabie to bringing tre asset into

of assets reld under fnance leases incuced in plant, machinery, fixtures and
fittings is £51.785 000 2021 £51.534 000 ) Included in netwaork assets is a prov sion of £1,023,000 for
obsc.ee equipment and development

ad;ustrnents
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Unlisted
investments Total

Group £'000 E£'000

30

Cost and net book value |
At L Jy 2021 11020 11,000
Adoht ons 129,452 129,452
Disposals (105.000! (105,000)
A03une2022 o sas2 35452

At 20 June 202] 11,000 11000

Subsidiary
undertakings Total

. S PR e W n e ek v v ke e e . . £'oo° S 5'900
c;ost" et s e R 28t e« s s+ o . e s .
AL 30 Jure 2021 2311678 2311678
Adaibions 228,300 228,300
Dispozals - -
Atso June zozz e et e e e e+ e e+ e e e e e 2,539,973

Accumulated imbai.r.ments 7 7 k
AL 30 June 2021 195,312 195,312 {
Reversal of iImcairmernts 1195,312) (195.312)

Company

2,539,978

Irparments -

Net book value
QEZOJuneZDZZ - ) - 2,539,978 ; 772,573”9,79737

£ 30 June 021 2,116,366 2116366

Details of related undertzkings are shown in note 29

Unistec investiments comprise the Group's ho.dirg of ine me™oers capital of Tendo LLP a lending

buziness, ara itz srareholaing in Bracken Tradirg Limiteq Fern co-founded Tendo (LF in Gotober 2012 with
tre intention of conducting a prooorton ¢f its “uture rzce through tre carinersn p Addons and dispssa.s
of un,sted investrents relate to vesiments and divestraents n Tenao __% - line witn Ferr's £3sh

recureT ents and 10 utihse surpus funds. Ferr Ras a sral shareholding o« Bracken Tradirg tmites from

2, Fern'z investrient in Bracken Trading wirites at 30 Jure 2022 was INIlL¢ 20 Jurne 2021 £n )
ne drector: ao not consider Teqdo LLP or Bracker Trad ng _iritec to be suts d ary urdertakergs of Sern
Tradimg Lirritec.



4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2022

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
5 AR S e R Pt N
Cash includes cash in nand and deposits repayab e on dernana

Restricted cash represents cask for wrich the Group cces not have immediate ard direct access or for
wiich reguiatory or logal requirements restrict the use of the cash

Group
2022 2021
C\mat mm ;rrisn S — B R B R 5 A 195 823 LA Lt e 11“&1 .
Restroted cash 60,592 55,337
Cash at bank and in hand 256,415 172,478

Restricted casn s comprised of £726,000 heid n tscrow and 255 866,000 of cash held ir subsiciares with

Dl-annual dIstrisuion winoows

The Company nad a cash balance of £6,422.000 a3 at 30 June 2022, nore of which was restricted 2022

rone;.
b
Group

2021
£ OOO
Ash siock 2. 195
Fuel, spare par:s and consurmables 26,023 18593
Property deve.opment WP 156,918 73923
184,479 54,711

The amount of stacks recogrised as an expense dunrg the year was £120,413,000 (2021 £41,212,000;

included in the fuel, soare parts and con ables stock value is a provision of £350.000 for unuszaile fuel
siock (2021 £455,00G0). 3nc:uc’mg r property developrnant WIF is a provision of 2928000 for warranty anrd
siie specific provisions

There has beer no impairmeant recognised dunng the year on stock (2021 ronel No invertory has oeen

pledgec as security for lianilities (2027 none;

The Company bad no stocks at 30 June 2022 (2021 nonel
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
130 oo

Group Company

frestated)
2022 2021 2022

£'000 E'CGo £'000

;mouﬁvts fallin; due afterone ;éér T
Loans and advences tD CUslomerns 137,662 16.128 -
Amounts falling due within one year

Loars and advances o customers 223,239 369384 -
frace debiors 42,050 16,121 392
Arncunts owed by related parties incte 24) - 3,950 32,950
Cither dettors 20,199 24,972 3,843
Corporaion tax - 6,003 2,527

Derivanye Anaraal nstraments note 24 54,409 5465 -

Frepaymerts

623,161 598,002 39,888

e E SEECEEE YXYE fandh g hrime haeee 3 TFF RO ARPASII NI SEAY RErarE AN TS0k

IO DO 145,602 154,375 176

2021
£E00C

8
12,751
5008

32616
50,383

—

Locans ard acvances 1o cusiomens are stated net of provisions of £13,874,00C (2€

f proviziors of 27739000 (2021 £15,741,000)

9]

DT’EDB‘]W‘-@"]TS arc accrued noeome are statec net

321, £18,195,000),

Mo interest 15 criarged on amourts owed oy group undertakings as the cutstarding Le.arces are unsecared

and repayate on demand (2021 rone)

Note 2& details t-e prior period adjustmenis

[
H
H
H
3
i
|




5w
=

4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2022

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

L T A S S T T ST AP =l

Group Company
{restated)
2022 2021 2022 2021
E'000 £000 £'000 ] - E000
Gank loans end overdrafts (note 161 87732 47586 - T
Trade crodsors 58,004 23380 76 16
Other taxat o0 and social secur'ty 8,161 - - -
Cther crogitars 24,362 55,9048 - -
Arncunts due to related part e3 (noto 24; - - - 20,203
Finance leases (rote 16; 2,428 2147 - -
Dervatvo financial instrurroents (note 22 - 143 - -
Accrusls and ceferred ircome 75 465 72,087 373 2 705

Group
2022 2021
Amou:;ltu falling due bet een one and ﬂve  years £000 E£'0C0
ér |‘< ‘an; and o/erd“a%‘) Lr.o = 16} H ‘ 383,070 247,297
Finarce eases (noie 1455 5,899 6.125
Derivative Fnancial nstrumrerts inote 211 - -
(JU"P)’ Creitars 5,364 5415
- © 394333 258837
Group
2022 2021
Amounts falling due after more than ﬁve years £000 £:000
Barix [080S ard Overdrafis Inote 16] o 573,416 577,235
Finarce eases inole 19} 24,676 24,455
e financial nstrurrenrts (note 21) - 42 772
total creditors talling due afler rmore thar one year - 992.425 - 903,339

The Compary has no creditors due in greater than cnie year
Amcunts owed o reiated parties are unsecured, nor-interest bearirg ard repayabe on demand

MNote 26 detaiis the prior period adjustments.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

i6 0.

Group

D in o

Diie betweer one and five years

Dae in rmore than fve years

2022

QU R

383,070

573,416

" 1,044,218

87732

577,235
871918

Tre Company had no bark loans al 3C Juns 2

oze.

The bank lcans are secured against aszers of the Groun with each loar as held by the subs dary srow™ below,

Vinors LIrrineo

Cedar Energy ard nfrasiructure Lire teu
Flos Energy &

Elos Energy 7

Boomerang Erergy Lomited
Darlrgion Point Soar Fary Py Lonited

Melion Rerewable Frnergy UK Lirted

Dulacea Wi Hedoo PTY Lta
Flvig =omes Limited

Zedteo Azsot Maragaermant L e

& month SONIA plus

Interest rate
£0%
LIBOR/EURIBOR plus 2.00%

3 month EURIBOR plus
1.20%. Fixed rate 1.70%

1.2% + 6 month EURIBOR
€ month SONIA plus 1.50%

649% (swap rate of 459% +
19% margin)

6 month SONIA plus 2.35%
17% + BBSY

5% + SGNIA 4+ 2 5% non-
utilisation fee

Fixed rate 2 5%

2022

[ETTRR »4,2,9:138

30,946

56,079
284,348

114,026

85,718
31,614

12,306

43

1,044,218

go00

2021
£1000

438,140
34,995

205,344

103439

871,918

SONIA repracec LIROR az the effectve irterbank lend ng rate syster from 1 danuary 2022 Tne rate charge

rezted in no comrrarial .mpact o the husimess.

Finance leases

Tre fGture min mum france lease payments are as follows

Payrmerits aue:
Mot later thar ore year
Later than One year and 10 .atar ar hve grears

Later than flve v

2022

[EIA—

2,428
5,899
76,461
84,788

£000

(51,785)
33,003

2021
£000

3166
5,196
72,013
81375
(47609)
33786

rental, renevwa! or purchase oplion cla

5

ecured against the leated 255215

-
vy
[]
o
A
m
3
ot
[Ve]

Tre Coripary had no finance leases a1t 30 June 2022
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
17 oo o

Decommissioning {restated) (restated)
provision Deferred tax Total
Group £'000 £'000 £000

Al July 2021 20439 20,833 41,572

Incroase cecogrised in profit and loss 21 11,495 11516
INCrease recogrised HrGagh Stiwar comprenansive Incore - 18,202 18,202
Imparment 16 - 16
Increase recognized in ixed assets 23656 - 23656
Recognised or subsiciary acqusitons - (3568} (3,568)

Adjustraertr respect of pricr yoars - (5465) 15465}
Lmwind.ng of discouni 249 - 248

Adiustment relating to Changs in accouning estimate (3.373) S (3.373)
Caain N transiangn 15 - 15

At 30 June 2022 41,023 41,597 82,620

The gzcommissioring provisicn s neld 1o cover future obligatiors o returr land ¢ which tmere are
operational wind, biomass and solar farms, to the r ongiral conditon. The arnounts are not expecten to be
utliced forin excass of 75 years.

The Corngany had no provis.ons at 30 June 2022

Note 26 detaiis the priar period adjustments

BB o S AaD A T e g

The Groun and Cormpary have the folow'ng share capial

Group 2022 2021

Allotted, calied-up and fully paid E£°000 E£000

1616622011 (2021 1L456,755,258]

Ordinary shares of £0 10 each 161,662 149676

Company 2022 2021
Allotted, called-up and fully paid - N ‘ £000 £000

1 616622,01112071 14957552580 )

Crdinary shares of £ 10 each 161,662 149676

During the year the Group issued 119866754 (2021 1.501.199,278 } ordinary shares of £0.10 each for an
aggregate nominal value of £11,98/000 (2021 £150.120,000). Of the shares 'ssued during the year, total
considerat-on of 203,750,000 (2021 £2 316 635,000} was paid for the shares, giving rise to a premium of
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

£191,763,000 (2071 £173,118 000} Durng tre year the Group nurchases 7 {2021 4 4242 020} of 15 Gwn
ordinary shares of £0.10 gach with an aggregate norminal value of £ril 2021 £444 A00). Tewal consiceration

of Erul (2021 £6 844 000} was pa:d for the Shares, giving rise to a premium of Enl (2021 £5, 399 ool

Tre Group nas adonted predecessor accouning princiles as o was formed as part of a grour

reconsiruction, therefore the share capital ano <nare premium accolnt are treated as if trey nad abwiays

existed. Movertents in share capital ansing both oefore anag after the restructiure are reported as movements
i the Group share cap.tal

£56,754 (2021 2,501,199, 278] crainary shares of £0 10 each for ar
021: £150.120.0000 Of trie srares 1ssuec dunng the year, total

Dur ng the year the Comgany ssued 1198
aggregate norminal vatue of £21 9870

consideratuon of £E203,750,000 (20250 £2,316,625 0001 was paid for the shares, giving rise 1o 2 premiurs of
£191,764,000 {2021 £2266,575 000). Curng 21 4444 020 of its cwn

e year the Group purchased nil 2
2no

8] , G
ordinary shares minal vaiue of Znl {2021 £444,500]. Total consideration

of Eral (2021 £5 844 000) was pad for the snares, Ing rse o a pramilm ¢f £

hution of dwvdends and the

There s a single class of ordirary shares “here zre no resvictions on the d

Cash flow hedge reserve
The cash flow hedae reserve s used to record transactons ansing from the Croun's cash flow
hedging arrangemen's

Merger reserve

Tne merger reserve ansas from the difference betweer the fair value of tne shares iszues and the book

vaues of the subsidianes acauirea

§§ L [

Tne moverment in ro--cortrs) ‘Imq nterests was as ‘ollows

Group
Note 2022 2021
A iJuly 2u 3,721 9,570
ale of subsid.ary undertaiirgs ¢ ]
oa‘wj.-im‘r g rr+ v 27 - (1.842)
Total comrprehersive loss atrnbuwatie Lo (6.622) 007

nor- C("” el

\meresla

At 2D Jure 2022 (2 901) 3721
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

no contingencies across the Group or

Carrying amounts of financial asses and labiites

Group Company

restated]
2022 2021 2022
£'000 £000 £'000

2021
£a60

oL e A e S ST G RS 2 D AR e AT - T ——

Carrying amount of ﬁnanmai assets

Debt insiruments measurad at amortised Cost 423,150 430,556 4,235

Mezsured st farr value through profit and [oss - 0,469 -

L oret

‘-f"oa ,urﬂ(‘ af h - faluﬂ thr(‘h '1 Ot' ¢ neormn 54,409 - -

Carrying amount of hnanc:al liabilities
Mezsured at amoruvsed cost 1,126,163 356,384 76

tMeasured atr farr value through other comprehensive (ncome - 42772 -

17.767

rpercd adjustments

eiplaE
Lidaisl

reAErs
~idide
20t

5
R yaget
k¢

bt 2 SRRl Ty
ORISRy SRR 5
P L LN A

Saba
LT ;\312\\ ‘ﬁi

LT v Bad iy .
.,\\Mn '}mii\{\:

i

f:w m
w:».“»x 5

Saal &wm
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Derivative financial instruments
The Groun's Ainanrdcia: nsk management seexs 1o minirnise the exposura o rnarkat rsk, credit r sk, iguidity

and casn fiow risk, and energy market rsx

a) Market risk
Energy market risk

The energy sector is exoeriencimg signifcant turbulence and there is a rix that forecast wevels of ncome are
net achieved due 1o changes in wncissa.e enargy prices, off -taxe cortracts or Jovernment subgdies
Changes in Government policy, or regulator ntervertion may result in requcaa ncorme streamis within the
group due to additonal t&-/:es.
Currency risk
Tre Group presents its consolidaten franciar staterierts in sterling anc cond.ucts susiness in
¢

other currencies, grnncipally Euro and Austrabian dolar Conseguently, the Grous 15 exposes 1o f
’ exchange rate movements, whech affect the Group's transactionat expens

franslatior of earning and net assets of s non-sterkng operatcns

Transactional exposures

-+

Transactiona. exposures anse from adminstrative and otfber exgense ir carrencies other than the Group's
presentatonal currercy (Srering) “he Group erters in to forware forege excnange conracts and fore gr
excharge swaps to mibgate the exchange rate rnisk for certan foreign curency payabies and rece'pis The

forward currency contracts and swaps are measured at far value, whick s defermined using vawuation

weocnniguet nat sl se ebservabie mputs Fhf\ R used 1IN vaumng the derivatives are the forward
excharge rates for GBP AJD and G2P Om 30 Sune 2022 the fair value of tne foreign currercy
contracts was an asset of £l (2022 £6,469.000) ard 2 lacuty of Imil (2021 21235.000)

Translational exposures
Balance shect translatioral exposures arse or conschaahion on e retrarslation of the balance sneet of

r
non-sterling operators into ster.nd, the Group's presentaticrat currency The ieve, Of exposure 1s rev ewed
oy management arg the potential foreign Exchaﬂge rovement s withic a~ accesable level of risk ara

t

O
Yy
]
!
<
D

therefore, tymcaly. the Groug's porcy to not t cly hedge trese exocosures

Interest rate risk
The Group has exposure to fluctuations ninterest rates on ¢ borrowings. Where the Group enters mic
OorrowiNg arrangements with floatirg rate ntere swap arrangemeriis entered nto to fix a poruen of

. as5wa
re interest in order 1o mutigate agair:st ar increase n rterest rates The pertion of intgrest e be fxed s
2

e by caze pasic Marnage™ent can elect whether (o “edqge account for these

arrangements on an irdividusal ransacuo cdge accountng for nterest

rate swaps

faciity and mature ¢ the same cale.

G 30 June 2022 the ouistending interest raie swans Nave a mahur by 10 excess of five years ang the fair
valee 15 In an asset positor of £54,40% 000 (2027 lability of £42.62% GO0

Price risk

23

Tre Grounis a snort- 1o mecium-term lender o the residential property market To the extent tngit-are s

that affects the croperties that the Group's i0ans are secured

w“r

deteroratior in o2 level ¢ house gnice
tha

re s a s« natl tne Group rray not recoun it full exposure This is mutigated by the short-termr

3
4]

ar ay
Dars anc the conservatve level of loar to va'ue tnaf the Group s prepared o lend at
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

b} Credit risk
Custerrer credit r sks r tisated through the Group's cred £ cortrol policies, which are in piace *o ensure
that our customers nave an approepniate cred © hustory and are monitored on an ongaing bas s

¢} Liquidity risk
L quidity nisx are managed by ensuning that sufficient cash is availacle "o fund continuing and future operatons.

Liguidity ris< anses on bank ans i glace across frﬁvr ana is manzged througn careful monitoring of

=

covenants and sensibie ievels of debt. Borrowing 1s on g long-term basis, wheareas our ravenuc IS recaivaed
rs on odr short-terr ioan bock Cash fiow risk s

throughout the year, as wel as i~ferest and redemptic
managed through ongoimg cash flow forecasting to arsure receicts are sufcient o meet lablities as they
fall due

e T I

At the year end the Groun had capita! commitments as follows

2022 2021
Group £000 £'000
Contractod for but not providad inthese financial statements 347,254 S0.156
Uncrawn faciibes on ioans to borrmwers 173,600 92 6RZ

At 3C June the Group bag total future min mum lease payments under nor-canceilacie operatirg ‘eases
as follows:

2022 2021

Land and Other Land and Other

buildings buildings
: S 0 e BO00 DD ERRO
F’ayrmer‘:ts duc: & o ‘ o ‘ ‘
Mot later thar one year 8,707 661 8,031 749
Later than one yaar and nof later than fivo 31,627 726 30.365 16856
years
Later than five years ) i 95,664 i - 118, 932 9

135,998 1,387 157,332 2 444

The Group had no other off-balance sheet arrangements (2021 roris).

Under sections 334A and 4734 of the Comgan.es Act 20086, the parent company Fern Trading Lirmited has
guaranteed all cutstanding L abiities or those corpanies taking the exemption to wnich the subsidianes st
an pages 79 to 90 were subject to at the 30 June 2022 untl they are satisfied in full These lizbilities wotal
£915m Such guarartees are enforceable agairst Fern “rading Limited &y any cerson to whom any such
tiability iz due

The Cormpany Pad no cacital or otner commitments at 30 June 2022
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Or 21 July 2022, Fern Trading Develogrment Limited UFTELY), a subsidiary of the Groun, successfully sold
Carlingten Point Holdeo Pry Limited to Octopus Australa Master Trust A srnail profit of E850,000 was made
on tne saie

Onthel 2022, the Group ecawred nghts to a £25m cred t voucker and the ngnt o use

rmchiie i

e UK, via a Strateg ¢ Cornectivity Agroement, thus ma< ng the frst step towaras
beccrming an molbile virtual network operawor.

Uncer FRS 1C2 33,14 cisciosures need not be given of transactors entered rio between two or mor
e

e
members of & Group, prov ded that any sucsicdiary which is a oarty 1o the trarsaction s wooly owred oy

such a memier,

Durng the year, 77934000 (2021 £61,154 00C; were chargec 1 the Group oy Octopus

Investments Limie SELE party due otz signifcant influence over e entity. Octopus investments

fm

Limited was recharged egal and profesciona. fees totaling £13,255 (2021 215.600) by tre Group Attne

year end, ar amount of £5, 500 (ZGZ‘: £22500C0) was outstanc ng whick s included in frade creditors

The Greup s enttled to a prof Canare as a result of its investment in Terido LLP, a reiated party due to key
managarnent personnel n cormon. tn 2022 a thare of grofit equal 10 £524%,000 (2021 £445 000 nas

been recognised by the Greup Al tne year end, the Group nas an interest ir tne member's capital of
¥

F35 452,000 (2021 £22.000.0001 and accrued income cue of £5,276.000 2021, £475.0C0
Tre Grodp ergages In lending activities wh Ch incluce talances provided to ed partics chardmg

G
entines with <ey management perscnnel in common, leans of £63,494, Uﬁ” (2022 £173 224 000%, accrued
ncome of L1595, 785,000 (2021 26,203,000 and efe re d ncome of Erat (2021 E101,000) were cutstandng
at year erd. Durng me vear interest income of =

OV arc ‘eas of £394.000 {20720

£536,0CU) were recognisec inreanon 1o these icans.

Durrg the year th o acquired 9 reserve power compsnies from Comsanies managed Sy DCtopus

u
Ir~ve:tmem5 Limited, a related party See note 27 3l for detaiis of the companias acquired

s al 30 June 2022 End (2021 £3,350,275) was owed 10 the Comgeny by Brac<en Trading Limied, a reated
arty by ey management perzonnel in carnrmon

Cihier than the ranisact
wholly cwned supsidiary mermbers of tre Cj'oup.

27z alsclosed avove, the Comeany's other reiated party

Ir the op'on of the & reciors, there 1z NG LWIf mate cortrelling party or parent compary.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022 :
267 v o an e

a) Group structuring review

We have conducted a review of orior vears accounting treatment of intercompany restructuring In this
review management Jdentfied unamorused goodwill baiances in relation to these transactions We have
agjusted tne previous years to reflect the implemeniation of amortisation backdated 1o whan the relevant
ransact ans occurred. The accumulated irpact “or the goodwill amartisation in the proﬁr ana loss for 2021 i

was L8m (2020 £5.%m) the rrovement of £2.7m nas been resta ed throughout the 2021 comparative
rumiers A summary of tre impact of the correction is prov-ded below!
Year ended Adjustments Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020 i
(as stated) (restated)
Group E'000 £000 ] £000
Gooawid 583988 (£.335) 578,653
Retanred earnings 41,185 5,535 46,520
Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
{as stated) (restated)
o £'000 E’ODO -
602,711 (8 O49J 594 6 2
Retaingd earmings (122,920} 8,049 (115,871}

As part of tne review of the intergroup restructurng mertioned above, management identified one cf the i
restructures had been incorrectly accounted for in 2 sub sechon of the group. No further errors were
discovered n the review. The accumulated impact for goodwill amortisation in the profit and ioss for 2021
was £25m (2020 £1.3m), the movement of £1 2m has been restated throughout the 2021 comparative
numbers This impact to the 2020 openirg retained earrings was offset by £2 1m written back agains: bad
debt expensas Management have correctad the dentified error witn the foliowing imoact.

Year ended Adjustments Year ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2020

(as stated) (restated)

Group e § £°000 £'00C £000
Coogwml sgzoes (29183 554.805
Retamed earmings 41,185 899 42.084
Depters 842,548 {2.724) 839,825
Creditors amounts faling due within one year (232.813) 496 (232,317
Fixer assets 1,346,655 30512 1377167
Year ended Accumulated Year ended

30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021

(as stated) (restated)

Group o £000 £000 £000
Gooawl T 602,711 (27963) 574748
Retained eamings {123,920) (320 (124,241)
Cebtors 600,726 {2.724) 598,002
Credrors amcurits falling due witbin one year {207,318) 456 (206.822)
Fixed 4ssets 1,551,17C 30,512 1.581,682
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

b) Deferred tax adjustment
We have conducied a reveew of all consolidat.on entries at supsectiors of the group We Fave identified an
error refating to 2019 when deferred tax adjustments were entered as a consolidation entry anc had
subseguently not been reversed. We have checked the tax per subsdiary account ard have enswred that tne
relevant balances are correct, The error was posted at e conzoldated eve! orly and nas now been correcter

Year ended Adjustment Year ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2020

{as stated} ({restated)

Group o £'600 £'000 £ 000
Retained earrngs 41185 (4764} 36421
Creditors amounts “aiing due witnim ane year (732.813) 4764 (228.049)

This has a knoo« effect into June 2021 the restated talances are as follows:

Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2021 30 June 2021
(as stated) (restated)
Group £:000 E£000 E000
Retared earrings (123,920 4.764) (128.684)
Crediors amourts fallng due wit-ir ore yeas (207.318) 4,784 (202,554)
in preparing the tax compotations for 2022, tne Group's tax advisors have noticed ar overlecked

assumption ir previous years tax consahaat on calculations Within tne previcusiy unrecegrized deferred tax
assets held wnh N the groun serne were avalable on a consoicaed evel 1o offset ine Group's 2eferred tax
liakiity. On anirgividual compary bazis the deferred tax 'n previous years had oeen correctly recogrised A
part ¢f these deferred assets are in relation (o cash flow nedgses rele witmin the growp whicr are accourted
for with n other compre-ensive income Toe accudmu.ated immpact for the tax charge r the profit and lozs
for 2021 was £15m {20273 £15 37} the movement of 300k has been restated throughout the 2021
comparative ~umMoers

A zumimary of the impact of the correction s provided celow:

Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
{as stated) (restated)
Group £'000 goc0  E000
Retainied earings 41,185 (15,299} 25,886
Cash flow hedye reserve 63,837 {3,875} 59,962

Deferred tax provisars 136,484) 19,174 (17,310)
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
(as stated) {restated)
£oo0 . Eo00 ... FEOC00
n23020) (08003 (139013
Cash flow necge reserve 17,098 (2.119) 14,979
Deferred tax provisons (38,145} 17212 (20,533)
Summary of prior period adjustments:
Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated) (restated)
A £o00 . o E00O0
583,988 {34,517} 549471
842,549 (2,724) 839,825
1,346,655 30.512 1377167
Coferred tax provisions (36,484) 19,174 (17.310;
Cash flow hedge reserve 63,837 (3.875) 59,862
Creditors arnourits falling due within one year (232,813 5,255 (227,554}
Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
(as stated) {restated)
Gr?&qp o o ‘ ) ) £'000 £000 £'000
Retsined eamiige (123.920) (12.129) (136,049)
Googwil: 602,711 (36,010 566,760
Dentors 600,726 (2,724} 598,002
Fixed assets 1551170 30,512 1581682
Coferred tax provisionrs (38.145) 17212 (20,933
Cash Hlow nedoe reserve 17,098 {2,112} 14,979
Creditors arnounts falhing dug within one year (2G7,318) 5,259 (202,059
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a) Reserve Power acquisition
On 2 July 202
for consiceration of £18. :

rey

the Group acauired 9 reserve power sites tnrough the purchase of 100X of the share cap tal

y

The ‘clicwing tanies surnmarse the corcideration paid by tne Group, the ‘aT va.ue of the assets acoursd
and e dabilites assumred at the a

E 000 ‘

Total consideration 7 R ST i
Detals of the farr valae of the net assets aogaired ana goodwil arisng are as follows:
Book value Adjustments Fair value

o £000 o EODD) ) EGOO '
Iracle and cther recerables 294 - 294 3
Prepayments 635 - 635 3
Cash and cash equivalents 7.858 - 7.858 :
Trade and other crectors (2,206} - {2,206)

Loans (58,816} - 158.81%)
Net assets acqmred 28,553 (28,553) -

(_JO\/d‘V“ -

Total consideration - ;

Goodw ll resulz ng from the busiress combimaton was ril

The consol dated statenrent of corrprehensye incerme for tne year includes £45 803 300 revenue and a

profit after @« of FE86,000 n rezpect of this acgusiion
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

b) Doveryard Limited acquisition
On 22 October 2021, the Group acqguirec Doveryard Limited anc sts subsidiary throwgn the purchase of
100% of the share capital for consiceration of £13 414 000,

The following tables summarnse the cons deration pais by tne Greup, the fair value of assets acquired, and
liabiltes assumed at the acguisition cate.

Consideration £'000

ety a e of e B AN AR Y RS G M A B FEE TN R B v R €00 B AL A b bt nd 6 AT BaTs st T SR

Cash 12, 377

Directly attricutable costs l 037
Total consideration T T T 13a1a
Cetails of the fair vaiue of the net assets acguired and goocwill arising are a3 follows:

Book Adjustments Fair

values value

fetis . . s I L T T o Ty E.ooo E'ooo £'°°o

L‘X;dd;;bﬂ» SR e b B i 0 S 50 AP 569 U ens - o "

Trade ana other recevables 5z - 52

Prenayments anc acorued income 193 - 163

wwd~= and other ¢ }nors (467) - (467}
Net .{;s;ts acqi..{e& S a7 At
Total consuderatuon o S 13414

Coodwilt resalting frem the business comiination was £13,.C67.000 and nas ar estimated useful bfe of 25
vears, reflecung the iifespan of tne assets acquired.

The consolidated statement of comarehensive income for tha year includes Enil of revenue ard a loss
before tax of £123,000 in respect of trus acguisiion.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

c) Dulacca acquisition

O 27 Augest 2021, tne Group acqudred Daiacca WF Hoidee 2TY L ang ks three subsicianes trrough the
purchase of 100% o the share capal for consideration of £215.680,000.

Tre folocw: N; tabies summanse the consideratc paid by the Groun, tre far vatue of the assets acoured,

and the lzoiites asiume ar tne acau'shor cate A list of the entues acquired incivded in note 29

G

Consaderatlon o o A Exchange Rate E£'000
vt e N l 8964 e
Directly attniputabi: cosis 1.8604 595
Total consideration' - B . 25.8683 S 115,680

Detal's of tne far value of the net assets agnared and intangisie arisng are as foliows

Book Adjustments Fair Book Adjustments Fair
values value values value
» AUD'OOO AUD’OOO AUD 000 ~ E'000 E’ODD £‘0
Fired ssses Toress L Tozess T sesz - g
Trade and ohor receivailes 10,131 - 10131 5.357 - 5,357
Cash anc casn ejuvalents 103,072 - 103.072 54,525 - 54,525
¢ fl\_J Q52) - ‘u 954; (5, 793) - {5,793)
Net assets acqwred 209 884 o —299 884 - 111.026u-— - 111 026“““
qu‘bm R a7 i i " 4@54“
Totalconsideraton 218,683 115680
ritargibles resulting fromr the asset purcrase was £4.654,000 ang has an estimated uselll e of 30 years,

reflecting the laespfm of ire assets acoured,

The consol dated statemert o corrprehensve Inceme ‘or the year inc.udes £ni of reverae and & loss after
fF? SYANE

tax

{0 inrespect of tus acguizticn

H
i
:
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

d) Zestec Asset Mangement Limited acquisition

On 21 January 2021, the Group acquired Zestec Asset Mangerment Limited a project scurces for rmoftoe

solar, through the purchase of 100% of the share capital for consideration of £4,765.000.

The following tables surrmarise tne consideration paid by tne Greup, the farr value of azsets gcguired, and

labiities assumed at the acquisition date,

;on;ideration o N i o ‘ o o ‘ . )

Ceterred consideration -
1093

4765

£900

ML SR %

Crrectly atirbutable costs

Total consideration

Cataile of the fair value of thie net assets acquired and gooowill ansing are as foiows:

Book Adjustments Fair
values value
£000 £000 £'000

s AERRAEAT RS wanaE A L E P TS SR

Fixed assets 156 - 156

Trade and avher ereditors (574) - 574)
Trage and other recervablas 400 - 400
Cash and cash equvalents 1015 - 1.019

3l
Other ioans (46) - (46)

Net assets acquired 955 - 955

Goodwil S . 3,810
4,765

Total consideration

Zoodwili resutting from the cusiness combination was £3.810,0800 and nas an estimated use®ul ife of 10
years, reflecting the estimated lfespan of the assets acguired

The consoidated statemert of comprehensive income for the year includes £198,000 of revenue and a loss

pefore tax of £494 000 ir respect of this acguisition
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

€) Elivia Homes acquisition
DN 2% May 2022, me Grous aoguired Elvia Soldings Limited and its supsida
100% of the share capital for consideration of £31.684,000,

ies, through tne purchase of

The ‘c.owing tables sumrearse the considerat:on paid oy the Group, the “ar valde of assets acquired, a~d
lablities assumed at the acguisiton date. A st of the entities acquired ac incliuded in note 29

Conmderatlon
\-ash

Cirec ’Ly attr Ou‘ 1b o (,o”\

Zetals of the fair value ©F trie net assets acquirec and goodwill ar sing are

Book
values

as Foullows

Adjustments Fair
value

ngkJahuetg e e e RS s et - 418 P ] 418
Intangible assots 11.767 - 11767
Steax 69,939 - £9.939
Frade and other debiors 2.609 2,609
Cash and <ash equrvaients 11,603 - 11,603
Aczraals and defarreq incorme 420) - (420
Provisions {930) - (930)

Defarrad ta

6,000
(03423

Trad

Net assets acquired 3

uaO’JwH

Total consxderatton

(1,400 2,600

- (£9453)
‘(L400) 30133
| 31,684

(E000 £000

Goodw Lresuting
years, reflecting the Wfescan of the assets acaurea.
Trie conscldated

taerment o

<
proat before tax of £2,502,C00 1 respe:t of tmis acauEition.

fror the business combimaton was 1 851 000 and kas an estimated useful e o

orprerensve noome for e year incluces revenue of £25.034200 and a

|
|
!
!
!
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Our reported results are prepared in accordance wite, United K ngdom Accounting Standargs, ncluding
Financiat Reporting Stancard 102, as detailed ir the Financial Statements startimg on page 35 of tre Annual
Report |In measunng our perfarmance, the financial measures that we use include those that have beear
denved fromr cur reported results in arder 1o eliminate factors that d stort year-on-year compansons Trese
are considered non-GAAFR firancial measJres

Net debt
We provide net debt in addition ¢ cash and gross debt as a way of assessing cur overall cash positon and it
B cormputed as fol.ows

2022 2021

Noig £'000 £'0060
B A TS S 359D L5 B8 Db b o ek L

Sark loans end overdrafts 16 1044218 871,018

Other Inans

Grossdebt 871,918

Cash at bank ard in nancg 7 11 (256,415) (172,478}

Net debt 793,167 699,440
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
EBITDA

Earnirgs before intarest, tax, deprecizron ard amcortisat-on ("EBT DAY 15 calcuiated by adjusting profit after

tax for irterest, tax, deprec.aton and armaorisation, in addition to income anc expenses that do not relate to

the day 1o cay coerations of the Group We provide EBITDA In aggite to proft after tax as it aliows us 10

assess our performance withaut the effects of financing and capiral exgenditures

Tre fcllowing tanle details the adjustments made to tie reported resuts

2022
N “NtheV ) ‘ £'000

s vun 4 awwm e ane o teraanaes @ maxer  Tow

{restated)
2021
E'QGO0

Proﬁtl(loss) ;"o} the financial year o nZ;LS‘LO
Add

Arnartisat.on of otangile as

2 37.849

Irnparrment of intanahle assets 8 7913
Deprec stior of @ana:bie as 2 101,802
Irerest payatie and sirrilar expenses £ 33,554
txceptional temg 1,105

Tax 7 16,254

incorme frorm other frod as

f-nveshmerts 15,249}

Srare of operating proft in jomnt verture ~
Eroft a0 cisposal of subsidianes (79,532}
interest recevable and similar incorne & (130

EBITDA ' 194,916

(31.012)
37704

84,697
36,067

3,346

(440)
{L,755]
[28,568)

104,036

Note 26 deta'ls the prior gencd adiustments
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
29

Details of the subsiaiary undertakings are as fol ows

Country of Class of Principal
Name e vieion v oincorporation shares ~~ Holding activity .
Abbots Ribtor‘. Sotar:reg, Holdmgu"rtcd o UK o Ordinary 100% Holding compary
Adaurda Solar 5PV 1 Limited™ UK Crdinary 160% Energy generation
Agrisal-2 SARL France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Al Networks Lrmnited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Alipoints Fibre Limiteg®” UK Ordinary 100% girtz)rzs;fzvnork
Auchencarroch Energy Limited®™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Auquhine Lard Company Limited™™™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Avernie Solar Farm Limred” UK Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
Barbury Power Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Batisolaire 5 54RL" France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Batisclare 7 SARL? France Qrdinary 100% Holding company
Beetley Energy L'rited” UK Ordinary 106% Energy generation
Beighton Energy Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Dormant company
Beinneun Wind Farm Led™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Bellhouse Energy Limied™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Birch Estate Solar Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Blaty Sclar Farm Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
BNRG 1OW Limiteq™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generaticn
Bolam Energy Limiteg™ LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Boorrerang Energy Lirmited UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Boreas Energy Limited" UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Eratton Fleming Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Breck Sclar Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
E?:r;;:"?t(:é?dyrﬁ Soler Deveiopments Holcings UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Bryn ¥r Odyn Solar Developments Limited™ UK Ordinary 1007% Energy generation
Bury Power Limiteg” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Cadoxton Reserve Power Limited™ LUK Ordinary 1006% Energy generation
Caicias Energy Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company

Cark Lirnited® Ireland Ordinary 100% Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal
T e o s COTROTANOR  shares MO AW
Caswel Sowar Farm Lirmited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Cathk n Energy Umited?” UK Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
Causilgey Limited™ UK Crdinary 1C0% Energy generation
Cedar Erergy and nfrastructure Limited UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
CEPE Berceronne SAR.” France Ordinary 150% Energy generation
é:ﬁﬁ:&;i%ixi{z?e de Produceen d Erergie de France Ordinary 100% Energy generaton
CEPE de 2 Salesse SARLY France Grdinary 10G% Energy generation
ETE;JZI‘iﬂn}acg:?;gjii?;‘ifigé?g:;fe France Crdinary 100% Energy generaton
France Crdimary 160% Energy generation
France Ordinary 1600% Energy generation
France Ordinary 160% Energy gereration
France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
France Ordinary 100% Holding company
helson Meadow Energy Limited™ UK Drdinary 100% Energy generat:cn
Chisson Sofar Farm Holdings Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Heolding company
Chittenng Sciar Twe Lmited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Cilgwyn Energy Limiteo’ UK Ordinary 100% Dormant company
Clarn Farm Limiea” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Clararmond Solar SPYV 1 Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
CLP Develoorants Limited” UK Ordinary 160% Dormant company
CLP Envirogas Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Ser?\xggq of OBM
CLP Services Limted” UK Ordinary 100% Dormant company
CLPE 1997 Liriten’ UK Crdinary 100% Dormant company
CLPE 1999 Linted” UK Crdinary 160% Holding company
CLPZ Howdings Limitea™ Bhe Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
CiLPE Brogects 2 Lomritad” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
CoPE ROC - L omited” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
C_=P ROT -2 ormied” UK Oramnary 100% Energy generation

C_FERGC -3 Lriten™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal

Name L incPrporation shares Hoquﬂg act,guyty

CiPE ROC ~ ZA Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
CLPE ROC - 4 Lirnited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
CLPE ROC — 4A Lmited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Clyre Power Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Colsterwarth Energy Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Connon Bridge Erergy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Cotesbach Energy Limited”™ UK Ordinary 160% Energy generation
Cour Wind Farm (Scovand) Limiteg!™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy genaration
Crag=ell Farm Lirmted” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Crayferm domes (South Coast) wmied!? UK Ordinary 100% t?j\lfdelfgzlrggccg
Crayfere Limited?! UK Ordinary  100% gg:msé;:‘ét;;r:l;;gs
Crayferr Sunley (Sinfeld) Limiteg!! UK Ordinary  100% 3 i‘ﬁfggﬁ;‘;gi
Craymarsh Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Cressing Soiar Farm Limiterd” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Culvery Power Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 160% Energy generation
Cynor Bower Lirmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Cafer: Reserve Power Lim-ted”™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Crairy House Solar Limsted™ UK Ordinary 160% Energy generation
Deepdale Farm Solar Linnited™ UK Ordinary 1G0% Energy generation
Doveryard Limited™ UK Ordinary 160% Energy generation
rapers Farm Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Dulacea Energy Prorect Co PTY Ltgt? Australiz Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Culacca Erergy Prolect FinCo BTY Lid Australiz Ordinary 100% Holding company
Culazca Energy Project Holdco Co PTY Lta* Australia Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Culacca WF Holdoo PTY Ltg!? Ausiralia Crdinary 100% Holding company
Lyfryn Bradyn Lirmuted™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Eakring Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Elecsol Camargue SARL France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Elecsol France 7 SARLY France Ordinary 20% Energy generation
Elecsot France 11 SARL® France Ordinary G0% Energy generation
Elecsol France 15 SARL? France Ordinary 1007% Energy generation
Elecsol France 19 SARL? France Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name ..
Flecso. France 22 SARL
Elecsor France 24 SA
Elecso France 25 SA
Elecsoi France 47 SARLY
Elacsol Hawi var SARL
Elins Energy 2 France SAS”
Elios Erergy 2 Lire ted
Eios Energy 3 Frarce SASY

Elios Zaergy Howd ngs 21 mated”

Ehos Bracgy Scldings 3 Lirmited”

Elice Energy Holaimgs wmited”

Fuos Renewabls Fneqgy Limead”

Elivia Developrert Finance Lirited!s

Ehvia —oldimas Limited

Elvia momes (Central) himitad*

Lavia Homres (Dormant 21 Limired™”
Elva Hornes [Grange Road) Limiteg ™
Ehvia Homes (Netley, Lirnited™*
Elvia =omes Southerm Limited™t
Ehvia Rames (Surbion! Lreed
Attt

Eliva —orres

Elivia Morth Lrragedst

ol 1t
Suvia Ordord Lirmten

oatn _mutedt!

m
w
7

Country of Class of Principat
__incorporation shares Holding activity B
France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
France Grdinary 160% Energy generation
France Ordinary 1G60% Energy generation
France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
France Ordinary 160% Energy generation
France Crdinary 100% Eriergy generation
France Crdinary 100% Holding company
LK Ordinary 100% Holding campary
France Crdinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Holding compary
UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Holding cormpany
UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
) Construction of
9] %
UK Jrdinary 100% domestic buildings
Qrdinary Financial services
UK Deferred 100% ; -
holding companies
Preference
o Construction of
LK rdnary 100% domestic builldings
Construction of
e,
UK Ordinary 100% domestic buildings
) . Construction of
VK Ordinary  100% 40 mestic buildings
o Development of
UK Ordinary 100% oLIding projects
Construction of
| | A
K Crdinary 1007 domestic buildings
Construction of
" 2,
UK Crdinary 100% domestic buildings
. o Development of
K Ordinary 100% builging projects
UK Crdinary  100%  Deveoementof
building projects
Construction of
) domestic buildings
Ui O G0% ‘
J Crdinary 169% Buymg and seling of
own real estate
Stri
UK Ordinary 100% Construction of

domestic buildings
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name
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Country of

incorporation

Class of
gha res

Principal

Holdmg actlwty

Construrt;on of
dornestic buildings

Floviz Southerr: Limited!t UK Ordinary 100% Buying and selling of
own real estate
Elicombe Limited™ UK Ordhnary 100% tnergy generation
Energy project
Energy Power Resnrces | imited™ LIK Ordinary 100% Sne;:;;zrr:i?:t and
services
EPR fy Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
£ye Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
EPR Slanford Limtea™ UK Ordinary 106% Energy generation
E-R Jerewable Erergy Limteg” UK Ordinary 100% Holding cormpany
EPR Scotland Lrrited™” UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
EPR Thetford Lirmutea” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Eucalyptus Energy Holdings Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Euzalyptus Energy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Feltwell Energy Limited”™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Fern Erergy Cour Holdings Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Heolding company
Fern Erergy Modings Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Fern Erergy Lirmited” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Fern Energy Wind Holangs Lirnited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Fern Fiore Limited”™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Fern Healtncare Holdings Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Fern Infrastruciure Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Hclding cormpany
Fern Renewasle Tnergy Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Fern Rooftop Solar (A) Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Fern Rooftog Solar (BBD;™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Fern Rooftop Sclar (Zestec) Limited™ UK Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
Fern Trad ng Development Limuted™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding compary
Fern Tradng Group Lirmited UK UK 100% Holding company
Fern UK Pawer Developrrents Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Fibrophos Limited™ UK Ordinary 160% Supply of fertiliser
Four Burrows Lirmnitea™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Fraisthiorpe Wnd Farm Limited™ UK Grdinary 100% Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

e B e ERRR v s e v SR e e a e R B R RER hERRR

Gartafl Energy Lirt ”flz

Siganet Fiore Led™

Giganat Limited”

Grerchamber Wind Cnergy Limited™ ™

Grange Wind Farm Larited”™
Guardbride SP z.o.0!
Harbourne Power Limited™

Hayrmaker (Mount Ml Lig™

Haymaker (Naewpoal Soldings Lirited”

Hayrnaker (MNatewood) Lid”
Haymaker (Oakizrds) Holdirgs
Haymaker (Cakiards) Ltd™
FHelm Power 2 Limited™
Helm Power Limitec™
Higher Knapp Farrm Lirmed”
Hill Zrgd Farmm Lirmated ™
Hallamoor Lrited

Hul Reserve Sower Umited”
Hursit 52V 1 Limited™
Immingram Power Limited™

Irwell Power Lrnited”

Jameson Read Enercy Lirmsed™

Jurassic Fuore Holdings Limited™

Jurassic Fibre Limited

Larigan ~ower Lir ted”
Lenhar Soisr Lirated™
Littie T Scoilar cimited™

Littleton Solar Fanm Loriedd™

e

Lol Cermmun cations L™

Loddon Power _iraed”

Country of
mcorporatmn

0 TR Fa 3

UK

UK

UK

UK
UK
Poland
UK
LK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

UK

Class of

shares

Ordinary

Ordinary

Crdinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Grdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary

Ordinary
Ordinary

Crdinary

Principal

Holding actlwty

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
160%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
50%

50%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%

Dormant company

Fiore network
production

Fibre network
sroducion

fnergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy gereration
Holding company
Holding company
Energy gereration
Energy genearation
Energy generation
Fnergy generat.on
Enargy generation
Energy generaton
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Holding company

Fibre network
production

Energy gererat.on
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy gensraton

Fibre network
production

Energy gensration




i
i

4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2022

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Namg
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Lovedear‘w‘ uﬁ: ﬁed"
Luminarce Soar Limited™
M12 Socwucns Limitea™
Manston Thorne Limitesd™
Maren Energy Limited”
Marder Povwer Limited™
farley Thach Solar Limited™
Meadows Farm Limited””
Mebourr Solar Lirrited™
Melton LG Energy Limited™

Meiton LS olding Limited™
Melton LG ROC Limeed”™

Me.tcn Renewabie Energy (Holdings! Limited™
Meiton Renewabe cnergy Newco Lrr:ited™”
Medon Renewabie Tnergy UK L mized

Ml Hill Farsm Solar Lirmted™

Mirgay Farm Hold-ng Limited™

MSD Decoy Ltd™

MSP Strete Ltd™

MSP Tregassow Limited™

MTS Matchlands Solar Lid™

Nevern Power Limited”

New Row Farm Limited™

New.ands Solar Limted”

Ninnis Farm Limited™

North Ferrott Sruis farm Limited™
Northwich Power Lirnited”

Notos Energy Lirmited™

Ogmore Power Limited™”

Oldhail Energy Recovery Holdirgs Limited™

Cne Ashford Healthcare Limited

One Hathelo Hospital Limited

Country of Class of Principal
incorporation shares Holding activity

UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 10G7% Energy generation
UKk Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Qrdinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary  100% ?éﬁ;?ﬁ;mg

UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generaticn
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 1G0% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 160% Energy generation
UK Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
LK Qrdinary 100% Holding cormpany
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 89% E;C;Tti;is;; fservic:es
UK Ordinary 90% Provision of

healthcare services
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

One Heaithcare Partners Lirnted

Cria Wedgehl! Solar Holdirgs Limted™
Grta Weggenhill 5olar Lirited™

Falfreys Barton Lirmrea™

Farciau Hodirgs Lmited”™

Parciau Limited™
Park Broacbard Cimited™”

Paarreat Soar 2 Lid”

Pitenford (Cendoyar Arfield & Stockhaton)
Limited™

Fitts Farrn Limated

Poriios Soar Limates”

Pyms Lane Solar Lig™

Queens Park Road Energy Lirnitea™

Rengeford Care Limited™

-0
)
3
(&)
m
o]

ford Crertsay Limiterd™
Rangeford Crerceger mten”

Rargeford Dorking Limited”
Rargeford —oidings Limited”

Rangeford Poxenng Lirmited”

Rangeford RAP L mrited™

Ranceford Retirerrent Living Holdings L™

Rargeford Staslel:

)

G Lamiten”
Reachas arm Limited”
Rediake Power _imried”
Rysion Estate Limied”
Corpraat SAED S

gzt SARL

Seiby Power Limitea™

SFP Fbre Lrited®

Country of

incorporation

S —

UK
LK
UK
UK
UK
UK

UK

1K

UK
LIK
UK
UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

LK

LUK

UK

UK
LUK
UK
France

UK

UK

Class of
;hares

AR o

Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Crdinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary

Crdinary

Holding

Principal
activity

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Holding company
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation

Fibre network
production

Energy gereration
Energy generation

Energy generation
Holding compary
Erergy generation

Energy generation

Care services for a
retirement village

Retirement village
development

Retirement viltage
development

Retirerment village
develcpment

Holding company

Retirement viilage
development

Retirement village
development

Helding company

Retirement village
development

Energy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generatior

Fibre network
production
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

gt
Singrug Holdings Lmited™
Singrug Limtad™

S Hilis Lane (Ragdale) Lirnited ™

Skelorooke Erergy Limsted™

Slaughtergate Limited™

Sneatterion Benewable Power Fuels Limited™

Snetterion Renewable Power Holdings Lmited”

Snetterton Renswable Power Lirnsited"
Solarfi LP28 SARLS

Sclarf SPO1SARLS

Solarfi SP0Z SARL®

Salarf SPG4 SARL®

Solard SPOS5 SaRL?

Sclarf: SPOB SARL!

Solarf: SPLO SARL®

Soutncombe Farm Limited™

St Asapn Power Lmited™

Steadfast Parkhouse Solar Limited”
Seadfast Rudge Sowar Ltd™

Steadfast Shepton Belinger Sclar Limnited™
Stellar Power Limeted™

Stoneyhil Energy Lim:ited®

Suus zrergy Lirmited™

Summerston Energy Limiteg®”

Sunley Crayfern Lavant LLP™
Swish Fibre Cortracting Limited®
Swish Fibre Limited®

Swash Fibre Networks _td?
Swish Fiore Services Lirmiteg®

Swish Fibre Yorkshire®

Swash Trading Lirrited™

Country of Class of Principat

m_i)ra\nsgwpration shares Holding acti\fj}y

\ UKK ‘ Ordinary 160% Holding company
UK Crainary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
LK Ordmary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK QOrdinary 1002 Ejeﬁply of biomass
UK Ordinary 100% Holding campany
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
France Ordinary 100% Emergy generation
France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Dormant company
UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
UK Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
UK NA 50% NA
UK Ordinary  100% Sgsur:i;;\’nork
UK Crdinary 807% Holding company
LK Ordinary  100% ;’;%rsurgg‘gork
UK Crdinary 80% ;irtgjur;?igork
K Ordinary 100% Egg;?;ork
UK Ordinary 80% Holding company
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Name
TGC Solar 127 Lmted ™

TEC Sotar 107 Umited™

—

:
A
(%3]

clar B8 Limuted”

TGC Sclar 83 Limited™

The Fern Power Company Limited™
Tne Hollies Solar Farm Lirited”
Tnoresoy Estate (Buabyi Lirnited™
Tllinghar Powser Limitea”
Todnils Energy Limited™
Tregown Farm  maed”

TLrves Solar Limijteat

UKSE 15 Solar Limmited”

United Mines Erergy Lirmuted™
VCSE Btd”

Victona Solar Limted”

Viners Energy - mted

Vitrf Lmeted™

voltafrance G5 SAHL®

Yoltafrance 13 SARL?

Wadzwick Green Lmiteg”

LA s - - - ' . .
Wadswick Gresr Property Lervices Limiteo

Warnngion Power Lirirea”

Warerion Sclar Park Heldings Limiied™
Warer.oo Salar Pare Lirited™

Weew Farm 2 Limited™

Weztwood Power Liritea™

Westwocd Soar Lirmited™

SN Mt 8 Y R B G 88 ER RS S R B

Country of Class of Principal
incorporation shares ... Holding actmty
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
LIK Ordinary 100% Energy genaratcn
UK Ordinary 160% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
LK Crdinary 160% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy gereration
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary  100% ;irbo'ju”cigf’k

UK Ordinary 100% Energy generaton
UK Ordinary 100% Haolding company
UK Ordirary  100% Sg;u”;’zf“
France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
France Ordinary 160% Erergy gereration
France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Qrdinary 100% Holding company
USA Ordinary  100% Sgg;etfg?rk

UK Orginary  100% ol e
U Onary 1007 G
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy ganeration
UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal
Name ‘ i o q?qgg;g&ﬁtﬁg{; shares Holding activity
M;et;;fdemE”‘ergywa*e T UH o Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Wharf Power Limited™ LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Whiddon Farm Limited™ K Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Wrinney Hill Energy Lirnited™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Wincele Souar Holdings Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Wolverhampton rower Lid UK Crdinary 100% Ernergy generation
Wryde Croft W nd Farrr Lrited™*" UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
WSE Bradford Lirnitec™ ] Ordinary 100% Energy generation
WSE Hulavington Holdings « mited” LK Crdinary 100% Holding company
WESE Hailavington Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
WEE Park Wali wmited™ UK Grdinary 100% Erergy generation
WSE Pyde Drove Limited™ LK Crdinary 100% Erergy generation
Jestec Assel Managernent Limrited” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Acquired after year end Date
Fern Reoftop Sofar (2B} Elrriteo mmmmm T | 05/08/2022
Cuckoo Internet Ltd 31/08/2022
Vil Digital Cmited 13/07/2022
A0 Limited 22/1172022

Subsidaries esemp! [rom audit Dy virlue of 34804 of the Corrpanics Act 2006
“Subsidianes exempt from audit by virtue of $4794 of the Companses Act 2006
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Dissolved or sold during the year and up until signing S Date
Beirneun Holdings Lirrited L IG712001
Ridge wind Acguisit:on Lirmited 20/G7/2021
Fern Energy RiogeWind Acquisiions Limited 14/09/2021
Fern Energy 2'cgeW.nd Holdings Limites 21/09/2021
Ferni Energy “arirerships Holdings Lirmited 21/09/2621
Fraisthorpe (Hoiding) Lirnited 29/03/2022
OY Oldha'l Energy Recovery Limited 13/0%/2022
Comm?21 Ld 15/08/2022
Darlington Pcint Holdoo Py Limiteo 08/07/2022
Carlington Faint Solar Farrr Pty Linrited 08/07/2022
Darlington Foint Subnoldoo Pty Limited 08/07/2022
Norgic Power Developrmert Limiied 2%/12/2021
Voyrnikargas Wing karm Oy 2511212021
Saunamaa Wind Farm Oy 2371212021
Tre ragisteres ofice of all cormpanies  sted abhove is at 6th Floor, 33 Hoborr, _ordon, Englanc, ECUN 24T

except for tnose et out belew:

1. ul Grzybowska 2/29, 0C-13: Warsaw, Po.and
2. Finsent Masors LLE Capital Square, 58 Morrsor Streel, Edinnurgh, Scotland, =H3 8BF
2 1 West Regent Street, Glasgow, G2 1AP

4. 22 rue Alphicrse de NMeuville, 75G17 Pasis, France

S Bt Floor, 2 Grard Caral Sauare, Dubln 20 202 ASLZ rclerna
£. :, Station Works, Station Roaa, Claverdon, Warwicksirire, Unites Kingdom, CV35 8PE

7 Zone industrieie de Court ne 112 Rue Du Moureier 84000 Avignon, France
8. 13 Zalshury Fiace, London, Ergland, WIH 17]

8 The Corporatcr Trust Company, Corporaton Trust Center, 120% Crange Street, Wilnmington 13201,
United States

L dth Fioor Saliire Cours, 20 Castie Terrace, EdNburgh,

Apoiic House, Merouny Pack Wycomne Lare, Wooburn Green, Fign Wycomee, England, 4220 CHE

12 Leve! 32 101 Collinz Streel Mecurre, Victona, 500G, Adstaiz

The direciors Celeve inat the carry ng value of the irvestirenis is sugported by ther underiying net assets
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Fern’s share price has performed in line with targets

tern irazing limted is an unlisted company Every rronth, our Board of Directors agrees a price at which it

will be willng ¢ issue new shares, The share price 1s unaudied.

The figures celow nclude the share once of the previods parent Inow Fern Trading Greup Limied) as weil

as tnis entiny.

Share price growth since inception: Fern Trading Limited

19
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17 '{fvj

16 e -
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srasasirn o
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13 Mwmww
12 WM‘”’“MP&MN
i s
i1
16

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

1

Perforrance s cawculated pased on the sale grice for Fern's shares at 2 June each year. The srnare pnice 15

al

rot sugject o aundit by Ernst & Yourg LL~

fAinnual discrete performance

Financial Year Discrete share price performance

Jgne 20.21722 . S
June 2020-21 4.87%

June ZG18-19 6.23%

June 2017-15 1.05%

017 5.54%

June 2

J-une 201516 | - 3.83%

Jume 201415 398%
June 2013-14 3.72%

,Juné 2012-13 ~ - - 3.97% ‘

June 2G11v12 - 1.62% |

Source Ootopus Investments Limited, 2 June 2022,
&
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Directors and advisers

Diractors

Rogistered office

PS Latham

K] Witey
PG 3anow
T Arthur Eopointed 1 July 2022) D indesaendent auditors

e ¢ st & Young LLP
LHETHISNY sadravary .
pany secreary i Jedford House,

Octopus Compary Secrearial Services L rmited : 15 Badtord Sreet

Forward-looking statements

Trs Annual Report cortans cerrain forward-icoking staiements re:

tza to tne Company's future busress

and financial perforrance and future events or developmaents Thece stetements are based on tre current
knowladage and exosectatons of managemert and arc s.bject o assuTphons, ris<s and Jneerainte:, some
tor

he given that any particuiar exsectation will ce met and ‘orward-locking statements regard.ng nast trends or
{_

of whicn are related 1o factors that are beyerd tne conuol of e Cormpany Acp“r"imgly, O assurarice can

Hvities shoud not be taler a8 2 represeniatior trat such tfreras o7 acavities wit continue in the future Past

performance cannot be relied o as a guide o future perforrmance. Notnirg @ tris Anaual Regort should be

consirued as a oroSt ‘orecast




